I Si Capital & Financial Services Limited

29.08.2024

To

The General Manager — DCS

Listing Operations — Corporate Service Department
BSE Limited

Scrip Code: 530907
Dear Sir/ Madam,

Sub: Submission of the Integrated Annual Report under Regulation 34 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing
Regulations).

This is in furtherance to our letter dated 13™ August 2024 wherein the Company had informed
that the 30th Annual General Meeting (‘AGM”) of the Company will be held on Friday, 20th
September 2024 at 11.30 A.M. (IST) through Video Conference / Other Audio-Visual Means.

Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of the Listing Regulations, as amended, please find enclosed the
Integrated Annual Report of the Company along with the Notice of the 30th AGM and other
Statutory Reports for the financial year 2023-24.

The said Integrated Annual Report is being sent through electronic mode to the Shareholders of
the Company and is available on the website of the Company at http://www.sicapital.co.in

Kindly take the same on record.
Thank you.

For S.1. Capital & Financial Services Limited
SU_”TH K Digitally signed

by SUJITH K

RAVINDR RAVINDRANATH

Date: 2024.08.29

ANATH 161821 +0530

Sujith K Ravindranath
Company Secretary

Encl: As above

Regd. Office: No. 28, Second Floor, New Scheme Road,
Pollachi, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu 642001
CIN L67190TZ1994PLC040490
Tel: 04259-233304/05, E-Mail: info@sicapital.co.in Website: www.sicapital.co.in
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S.I1. Capital & Financial Services Limited

NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that the 30™ Annual General Meeting of the members of 5.1. Capital & Financial Services
Limited (“the Company™) will be held on Friday, September 20, 2024, at 11.30 AM. (IST) through Video
Conferencing / Other Audio-Visual Means (“VC/OAVM™) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

I.  Toconsider and adopt the Andited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024, and the report of the Directors and Aunditors thereon and, in this regard, to consider
and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial vear ended March 31,
2024, and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are
hereby considered and adopted.™

2  Toappoint Mr. Ramakrishnan T B (DIN: 01601072) whao retires by rotation as a Director and, in this
regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Ramakrishnan T B (DIN: 01601072), who retires by rotation at this meeting, be and
is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.™

3 To appoint Mrs. Jitha Chummar (DIN: 02582004) who retires by rotation as a Director and, in this
regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLYED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Jitha Chummar {DIN: 02582004), who retires by rotation at this meeting, be and
is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company_™

SPECIAL BUSINESS
4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 1%% of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable provisions, if any, including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being
in force, the consent of the members of the company be and is hereby accorded to enter into a franchisee
agreement with the parinership firm M/s. Fasy Financial Solutions, a firm in which Mr. Jayson A
Mekkattukulam, Chief Executive Officer, and Mr. Jyothish A R, Chief Operating Officer, are interested on
such terms and conditions as may be mrtually agreed upon.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all
such acts, deeds, and things as may be necessary, proper, or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to the
above resolution.™

By order of the Board of Directors

Sdi-
13-08-2024 Spjith K Ravindranath
Thrissur Company Secretary

Nuotes:

1. Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) vide its General Circulars Nos. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, 17/2020
dated April 13, 2020, 2002020 dated May 05, 2020, and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest
being 92023 dated September 25, 2023, (*"MCA Circulars™) has permitted the holding of the annual general
meeting through Video Conferencing (“VIC™) or Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM™), without the physical
presence of the Members at a common venue. Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM
through YCAOAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company situated
at No_27, First Floor, New Scheme Road, Pollachi, Coimbatore 642001, Tamil Nadu, India.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 10% of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies

30TH ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 24




-

Shageﬁfe}ilth

Capital & Financial Services Limited

N i

(Management and Admimstraton) Rules, 2073 (as amended) and Regulation 34 of SEBT (Listing Obligations
& Mhisclosure Requirements) Regulations 2005 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April OF, 2020, April
13, 2020 and May 03, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of
the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with
Central Depository Services (India) Limited {CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the
authorized e-Votng s agency. The facility of casting voles by 2 member using remote e-voling as well as the
e=-voling system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL,

3. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice, The facility
of participation at the AGM through VC/OAYVM will be made available to at least 1000 members on first come
first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding).
Promoters, [nstitutional lnvestors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit
Committes, Momination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors
ete, who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VCOAYVM will be counted fo ascertain the
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013,

5. Pursuant to MCA Circolar Mo, 1472020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint a proxy to attend and cast
vole Tor the members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113
of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of
a State or body corporate can attend the AGM/EGM through VOC/OAYM and cast their votes through e-voting.

6. Members of the Company under the category of Instituticnal Investors are encouraged to attend and vote al
the AGM through VOOAVM. Corporate members are reguested to send a certified copy of the Board
resolution authorizing their representative to attend the mecting by email to infoddsicapital,co.in

7. Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at httpewww. sicapital.eo.in/ The
Motice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges 1.¢. BSE Limited at www bseindia, com,
The AGM Motice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (the agency for providing the Eemote e-voting
facility and e-voting system during the AGM) Le, www.evotingindia.com.

2. The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2003 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8. 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated
April 13, 2020, and MCA Circular Mo, 2002020 dated May 05, 2020,

0. [n continuation to this Ministry's General Circular No. 2002020 dated 05.05.2020, General Circular No.
0272022 dated 05.05,2022 and General Cweolar No, 1072022 dated 28,12.2022 and after due exgmanation, it
has been decided to allow companies whose AGMs are due in the Year 2023 or 2024, to conduct their AGMs
through VT or OAVM on or before 30th September, 2024 in accordance with the requirements laid down in
Para 3 and Para 4 of the General Circular No. 2002020 dated 05052020

10. Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations, in respect of the Director(s)
retiving by rotation! seeking appointment at the AGM, forms part of this Notice.

11. Since the AGM is held through VC/OAVM in accordance with the Circulars, the route map, proxy form, and
attendance slip are not attached to this Notice.

12. SEBI has mandated the submission of the Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the
securities market. Members holding shares in electranic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN 1o
their depository participant{s)., Members holding shares in physical form are required 1o submit their PAN
details to the RTA.

13. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their sharcholding, maintained under Section
170 of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, maintained
under Section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM.
All documents referred 1o in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection withoul any fee by the
members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. Friday, September 20, 2024,
Members secking to inspect such decuments can send an email 1o infodsicapital.co.in
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4. The Board has appointed C5 Sreeknishna Kumar E, Company Secrefary in Practice, as the Scrulinizer 1o
scrutinize the process of e-voting. The Scrutinizer shall submit his report to the Chairman of the Company
( “the Chairman’) after the completion of the scrutiny of the e-voting (votes cast during the AGM and votes
cast through remote e<voting), not later than One working day from the conclusion of the AGM. The result
declared along with the Scrutinizer's report shall be communicated to the stock exchanges within two working
days from the conclusion of AGM. The result, along with the Scrutinizer’s Report, will be placed on the
Company’s website and the same shall be communicated to BSE.

L5, Instructions for Remote E-Voting' E-Voting during AGM

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL
MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER:

Step 1 : Aceess through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders
holding shares in demat mode.

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode
and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

i11The voling period begins on Tuesday, September 17, 2024, at 9.00 AM. and ends on Thursday, September
19, 2024 at 5.00 P.M. During this period sharcholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical formg
or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of Friday, September 13, 2024 may cast their
vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter,

{1i)Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date will not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue

it )Pursuant to SEBI Circular Mo, SERBLHOJCFIVCMIVCIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation
44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulanions,
20135, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all
sharcholders” resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional
sharcholders/retail sharcholders is at a negligible level.

Currently. there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facilities to listed entities
it India, This necessitates registration on vatious ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords
by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided
to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through thein
demat accounts’ websites of Depositories’ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able
to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless
authentication bul also enhancing the ease and convenience of participating in the e-voling process,

Step 1: Acecess through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders
holding shares in demat mode.

iv)In terms of SEBI circular no, SEBIYHOVCFDVCMDVCIE/P/ 20200242 dated December 9, 2020, on ¢-Voling
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed
to vote through their demat account maintained with Depaositories and Depository Parficipants, Shareholders
are advised to update their mobile number and email 1D in their demat accounts in order to access the e-Voting
facility.

Pursuant to the aforementioned SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual mectings fox

Individual sharcholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL s miven below:

£,
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Type of Login Method
sharcholders

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi [ Easiest facility, can login through their
Individual existing user id and password. Option will be made available o reach e-Voling
Sharcholders page without any further authentication. The users to login to Easi ¢ Easiest are
holding requested 1o visit cdsl website waw edslindia.com and click on login icon & Mew

securities in
Demat mode
with CDsL.
Depository

Hwatem Myeasi Tab,
2y After succesaful login the Easi/ Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option
for cligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information
provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able o see
c-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining viriual meeting & voting during the meeting.
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting
Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers” website
directly
3 If the vser s not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at cdsl

website www cdslindia.com and click on login & MNew System Myeasi Tab and

then click on registration option.

o

4y Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Mumber and PAN Noo from & e-Voting link  available on
woww . cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending
OTF on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After
successtul authentication, wser will be able to see the e-Voting option where the
evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the svstem of all e=Voting
Service Providers,

Individual
Sharcholders
holding
securties m
demat mode with
MNSDL
Deprository

1) If vou are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL, Open web browser by tvping the following URL:
https: Yeservices.nsdl.eom either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Onee
the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the *Beneficial Owner™ icon
under “Login™ which is available under the ‘TDeAS" section. A new screen
will open. You will kave to enter your User 1D and Password. After successtul
authentication, you will be able to see e-voting services, Chick on “Aceess to
e-Voung” under e-Voling services and vou will be able to see the e-Voling
page. Click on the company nams or e-voling service provider name and you
will be redirected to the e-voting service provider website to cast vour vote
during the remote e-voting perind or join & virtual meeting & voting during
the mecting.

23 I the user s not registered for [DeAS e-Services, the oplion o register 15
available at https:eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for 1DeAS
“Portal orchick  at https:Seservicesnsdl.com/SecureWeb TdeasThreciRe g jsp.

3 Wisit the e-Vaoting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
fivllowing URL: hips)www.evolingnsdlcom’ either on a  Personal
Compuier or on a mobile, Once the home page of e-Voling system 1s
launched, click on the icon “Login™ which is available under
*Sharcholder/Member” section, A new screen will open, You will have m
enter your Tser I (e, vour sisteen-digit demat account number hald with
MSDL), Password/'OTF and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After
successiul authentication, you will be redivected o NSDL Depository site
whergin you can see e-Voung page. Chick on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and vou will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
wehsite for casting vour vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & voling during the meeting.
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[ndividual Wou can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through vour
Sharcholders Depository Participant registered with NSDLACDSL for e-Vouing facility,  Afier
{halding Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Onee you click on -
securities in Yoting option, you will be redirected to MSDL/CDSL Depository site after
demat mode) successful anthentication, wherein you can s2e e-Voting feature. Click on company
login through name or e-Voting service provider name and vou will he redirected to e-Voting
their Depository service provider wehsite for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
Farticipants joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

(DP)

Important nete; Members who are unable to retneve User 1D/ Password are advised to use Forget User [D and
Forget Password option available at abovementioned wehsite.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related

to login throwgh Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shurehddcr‘s hp]dm,t:r. SeCWHNes | Wfembers facing any technical issue in login can contact
in Demat mode with CDSL CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

helpdesk_evotingiaedslindia. com or contact at toll free no.

Individual Sharcholders holding securitics Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
in Demat mode with NSDL MEDL helpdesk by sending a request at evotinginsd].coin
or call ar: 022 - 4586 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting syvstem in case of sharcholders holding shares in physical mode
and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

] Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other
than individual holding in Demat form.

17 The shareholders should log on to the e-voling website www . evolingindia com.
2} Click on “Sharcholders™ module.
3y MNow enter vour User 1D
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 10,
b For NSDL: & Character DP 1D followed by 8 Digits Client 10,
¢ Sharcholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Mumber registered with the Company.
4) Mext enter the Tmage Venfication as displayed and Chick on Login,
5} I you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier
e-voling ol any company, then your existing password is to be used.
61 If vou are a first-time wser follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat

ramM Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department {Applicable for
both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

¢ Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the CompanyTDepository
Participant are requested o use the sequence number sent by Company/ETA or contact
Company/RTA.
Company — infoi@sicapital.eo.in’ (4259 — 233304/05
RTA - golmbatoredinkintime co in/ Q432 40958098 | (423 2530835 Q4P 25308365
Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mmdyyyy format) as recorded in vour
Bank demat account or in the company records in order to login.
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Details

OR Date of * [ both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the
Birth member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

(03

i(vi)  After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT™ tab.

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However,
shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach “Password Creation” menu wherein they are reguined
to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be
also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible (o
vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to
share vour password with any other person and ake uimoest care to keep yvour password confidential.

{(vii}  For sharcholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e=voting on the resolutions
contained in this Motice.

(ix)  Click on the EVSN for the relevant <5 [.Capital & Financial Services Limited= on which vou choose to vote,

(x]  On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIFTION™ and against the same the option
“YESMNO™ for voling, Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that vou assent to the
Resolution and optien MO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xi)  Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LIKK™ 1t vou wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(s} Adfter selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT", A confirmation box will be
displayed, I vou wish o confirm your vote, chek on “OK”, else o change vour vote, chick on “CAMCEL”
and accordingly modily your vobe,

(xiti}  Once vou “CONFIRM™ your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify vour vote.

(xiv]  You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xv)}  If'a demat account holder has forgatten the login password then Enter the User [ and the image verification
code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system,

(xvil  There 15 also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to
serutinizer for verilication.

ixvii)  Additional Facility for Non - Individual Sharcholders and Custodians —<For Remaote YVoting only.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING
DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

= Mon-Individual sharcholders {i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRT ete.) and Custodians are required
ton Do om to wwweevotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates™ mosdule.

# A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed
to helpdesk.evotingiaicdslindia.com.

»  After receiving the login defails a Compliance User should be created wsing the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account{s) for which they wish to vate on,

#  The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any
WIONE mapping.

« It is Mandatery that, a scanned copy of the Board Reselution and Power of Attorney (POA) which
they have issued in Bivour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system
for the scrotinizer (o venfy the same.

*  Alternatively Mon Individual shareholders are required mandatory 1o send the relevant Board
Feselution’ Authority letter ete. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory who are authorized 1o vote, to the Scrutimizer and 1o the Company at the email address
viz, infoi@sicapital.oodn iF they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL
e-voling syvstem for the serutinizer to verify the same.

The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned
above for e-voling.

The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed
after suceesstul login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.




S.I1. Capital & Financial Services Limited

3. Shareholders who have voted through Femote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they
will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / 1Pads for better experience.

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a pood speed to avold any
disturbance during the meeting.

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
Maobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves
as a speaker by sending their request in advance latest by 10.00 A.M. on Saturday, September 14, 2024
mentioning their mame, demat account number/folic number, email id, mobile Dumber at (to
infodaisicapital.co.in The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send
their queries in advance latest by 10.00 A.M. on Saturday, September 14, 2024 mentioning their name, demat
account mumber/folio number, email id, mobile number to infoj@sicapital co.in These queries will be replied
to by the company suitably by email.

#. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask
questions during the meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and the
number of speakers, depending upon the availability of time, for the smooth conduct of the AGM.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through the VC/OAVM facility and have not cast their
vote on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible
to vote through the e-voting system available during the AGM.

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same
shareholders have not participated in the meeting through the VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such
shareholders may be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting 1s available only to the
shareholders attending the meeting.

PROWCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED
WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.
1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Mame of shareholder, scanned copy

of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to the RTA at coimbatoref@linkintime.co.in.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DF)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Flease update vour email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DF) which is mandatory while e-Yoting & joining virtual meetings through
Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you
can write an email to helpdesk evoting(@cdslindia. com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi,
Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex,
Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to
helpdesk. evotingi@edslindia.com or call toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
13-08-2024 Sujith K Ravindranath
Thrissur Company Secretary

Registered Office:
M0.27, First Floor, Mew Scheme Road

Pollachi, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 642001
CIN: L6T190TZ1994PLCI40490
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CTOTHE NOTICE

APLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

tem M. 4

he Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company in their mecting held on 13.08.2024 has
ommended and approved the proposal to enter into a franchisee agreement with M/s. Easy Financial Solutions, a)
artnership firm formed by Mrs. Sini Jayson and Mrs. Athira Jyothish, the wives of Mr. Jayson A Mekkattukulam,
‘hief Executive Officer, and Mr. Jyothish A R, Chief Operating Officer, respectively.

ection 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules made thereunder, requires prior approval of the memb

y way of a Special Resolution for entering into any contract or arrangement with a related party. As per the dc:ﬁniﬁuf-:rl:l
rovided under the said section, the parmership firm qualifies as a related party, and the proposed transaction of
ntering a contract in the nature of franchise agreement would be a related party transaction.

The Board believes that entering into the franchise agreement will be beneficial to the Company as it aligns with theg
rategic goals of expanding our franchisee business with trusted partners. The terms and conditions of the proposed

fgrecment will be on an arm's length basis.

Except for Mr. Jayson A. Mekkattukulam and Mr. Jyothish A K, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company or their relatives is concerned or interested in the resolution set out in ltem No. 4.

The Board recommends the resolution outlined in lem No. 4 for the approval of the members.

By order of the Board of Directors|

Sdf-
13-08-2024 Sujith K Ravindranath
Thrissur Company Secretary

R egistered Office:

Mo.27, First Floor, New Scheme Road
Pollachi, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 642001
ICIN: L6T190T£1 994 PLC040490

W ehsite: www.sicapital.co.in

IE-mail [D: infof@sicapital.co.in
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Annexure — A

BRIEF NOTE ON DIRECTOR(S) SEEKING APPOINTMENT OR RE-APPOINTMENT
(Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Mame & DIN

Mate of Birik

Mr. Ramakrishnan T B (DIN: 016010°72)

TIN5 T3

NPT AL S

M, Jitha Chummar (IIMN: D2SHZ004)

Ape

&1 Years

39 ¥Years

Experience

More than 33 years of experience in stock broking
business.

blore than 10 years of experience in
stock broking

Oaalifications

B.5¢, PGP i Portfolio Management and Research
Analyzs

MEA - Finance

Terms and Cosditions of Appointment

Mot-Executive Mon-Independent Direcior, liable 10
retire by rotation

Mon-Executive MNow-Independent
Dnrectar, liahle o retere by rokation

Diztails of remuneration sought to be paid and the
remumeration kst drawn

Sitting fees for atending meetings of Board within
the limit specified under the Companies Act, 2013

Sitting fees for atending meetings of
Hoard within the limit specified under
the Companies Act, 2013

Drate of first appointment oo Board and Date of
Last Rn:ilpru'-inl:munl as [hrector

!'in:pll.'u ther 343, 2020

September 16, 2022

Seplember 24, M

September 16, 2022

Sharebolding
Company

Beneficial ownership in the

WIL

MNIL

Relationship with other Dircctors, Manager and
ather Key Managenal Personnel of the company

Mot related to any Director / Manager © Key
Maragerial Parsonnel excepd fur his membership
and directorship held m Sharewealth Securities
Limited

Mot related v any Divector | Manager
Key Manugenal Personnel except for
her membership and directorship held in
Sharewealth Securitics Limited

Max. of meetings of the Board attended during the
petiod

R

7

[hrectorships held in other Companies

Sharewealth Seconties Limied, Moat Financial
Services Private Limited

Sharewealth Securties Lirmited

the Director as identified by the Nomination
and Hemuneration Commitice {KEC) and the
manner in which the proposed person meets
such reguirements

Listed entities from which the proposed director | MIL ML
has r\.'uig|1|.'|.| in the [RHED thice Woars
Skills arad capabilities regquired for the role of A EY
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Chairman’s Speech
Drear Shareholders,

I am delighted to welcome you to the 30th Annual General Meeting of 5.1. Capital & Financial Services
Limited, conducted virtually in accordance with the directives from the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and
the Securities and Exchange Board of lndia.

It is always a privilege to present the key highlighis of vour Company's performance. While the Financial
Year 2023-24 laid a solid foundation for our business expansion, the Company encountered significant
challenges and unfortunately ended the year with a loss,

Throughout the vear, we made concerted efforts to grow our business by exploring new opportunities and
expanding our footprint. Several new branches were opened as part of this strategy. Notably, our revenue
saw a substantial increase of over 89%, reaching Rs. 172,78 lakhs compared to Rs. 91.43 lakhs the previous
wear. Additionally, our gross loan assels under management surged to Rs, 909,77 lakhs from Rs, 510,28 lakhs
in the prior yvear, reflecting a robust 78.29% growth, These figures showease the resilience embedded in o
organization, especially in the face of the adversities we confronted during the vear. We remain oplimistic
that with our expanded portfolio, profitability will return in the years ahead.

Cnur performance across various segments has been consistently strong. Business loans, personal loans, gold
loans, and forex services experienced year-on-year growth of approximately 112.36%, 368.46%, 308%, and
27.63%, respectively. However, we did face declines in our term loans and vehicle loans, which decreased
by 58.56% and 9. 58%, respectively.

Chur company remains committed to its mission of delivering quality services to our clients and remunerative
returns to our Investors by maintaining the highest levels of transparency and integrity. We are working hard
to strengthen our business model, reduce costs, and explore new growth opportunities, which will aid the
Company's goal of responsible lending.

Before concluding, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to all the Board members for their support
and valuable contributions 1o upholding strong governance. My heartfelt thanks also go 1o our management,
advisors, consultants, and the entire 5.1 Capital team for their tireless efforts and commitment. We are
erateful to our consultants and service providers for their dedication, and we extend our deepest thanks to
the Government lnstitutions for their guidance and collaboration, Rest assured, we are taking every necessary
step to restore the company’s profitability and deliver value to our sharcholders. Your continued trust and
support are deeply valued, and as we embark on this exciting journey ahead, we hope to have your enduring
partnership in the years to come,

Thank you for vour understanding and cooperation,
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BOARD'S REFORT
Dear Members,

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the Company's 30th Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements
for the financial vear ending March 31, 2024,

Financial Results

The Company’s linancial performance for the vear ended March 31, 2024 is summarized below:

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars | 2023-24 | 2022-23
Fevenue From Operations 172,78 91.43
Oiher Income 3.75 21.29
Total Income 176.53 112.72
Total Expenses 248.11 122.45
Profit before tax (71.58) (9.73)
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax - -
Profit for the Year (71.58) (9.73)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the vear (71.58) (9.73)

Besults of Operations and the state of affairs of the Company

The company is a Mon-Systemically Important Mon-Banking Financial Company and a Full-Fledged Money Changer,
The highlights of the company’s performance for the year ended March 31, 2024 are as under:

o Revenue from operations was Rs. 172,78 Lakhs

»  Met Loss for the vear was Bs. 7158 Lakhs
With the increase in branches, the Company could increase the revenue from operations. Revenue from Operations
increased by 88% compared to the previous year, The company s making sustained efforts to achieve improved
performance and profitability in the coming years by standardizing its operations,

Dvividend
In the absence of profits, no dividend is recommended for payment this vear.
Details of material events between the end of the financial vear 2023-24 and the date of the report

There have been no material changes and commitments for the likely impact affecting the financial position between
the end of the financial vear and the date of the Report except the following,
«  The Managing Dircctor of the Company Mr, Sreeram Gopinathan Nair and Independent Director Mr Rajesh
Marayan Pillai resigned from their posts on 14™ June 2024 and 18" June 2024 respectively.
* The company has maised 34,50 lakhs throngh Private Placement of 3450 Secured unlisted Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures

Issue and allotment of Debentures

During the year under review, pursuant to Section 62(11c), 42 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 made there under the Board of Directors of the Company has issued and allotted 31950 Debentures of Rs.
I0WN - each on preferential basis, to the promoters/non-promoter and others e, persons/entities not forming part of
the promoter and promotler group.
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Allotment of Equity Shares

During the year under review, Company has allotted, 200000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each on the premium of Rs,
15/- each on preferential basis. to others i.e. persons/entities not forming part of the promoter and promoter group by
virtue of the conversion of the share warrants, As a result, the closing halance of the Equity Share Capital as on 315t
March, 2024 was Bs. 360 Lakhs.

Management Discussion and Analvsis Report

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated wnder the Securitics and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obhgations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2005 (“Listing
Regulations™), is presented in a separate section, forming part of the Annual Report.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals

There has been no significant and material order passed by any regulator, courts, or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and operations of the Company in the futwre.

Disclosure of fraud in the board’s report ws 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

During the vear under review, your Directors do not observe any transactions which could result i fravd. Your
Directors hereby declare that the Company has not been encountered with any fraud or fraudulent activity during the
Financial Year 2023-2024.

Business Operations) Performance of the Company

The Company is a Mon-Banking Financial Services Company and a Full-Fledged Money Changer operating under the
License of Reserve Bank of India.

Currently the performance of the Non-Banking Financial Services sector in India is on a positive note. The Company's
dishursements are on revival path and loan outstanding stood at Bs, 909,77 lakhs at the end of the financial year, an
increase of T8 y-o-y, reflecting the improved market conditions and focused efTorts of the company. Gold, personal
and business loans increased by 141%, 218% and 42% respectively, an indicator of economy normalizing and overall
positivie market sentiment, while Wehicle Loan decreased by 1.32%, The income from forex business recorded increase
of 27.5%%,

Despite the challenges raised by the pandemic, the management remains committed towards ensuring continuous
improvement in efficiency and performance, by realigning its strategies, products and process as and when required.

Seeretarial Standards

The Directors state that the applicable Secretarial Standards 1.e., 53-1 and 85-2, issued by the Instinte of Company
Secretaries of India, relating to Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings respectively, have been duly
complied with,

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Based on the framework of Internal Financial Controls and compliance systems established and maimtained by the
Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory and secretavial auditors and external consultants, including
audit of internal financial control over financial reporting by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by the
Management and the relevant Board Commitiees, meluding the Audit Commities, the Board is of the opinion thai
the Company’s internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively.

Accordingly, pursuant to the requirements of Section 134 {5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of their
knowledze and ability, state that:
(a) in the preparation of the anneal accounts for the vear ended March 31, 2024, the applicable accounting
slandards have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;




N i

vital & Financial Services Limited

(b} the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
as at March 31, 2024 and of the loss of the company [or that period;

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern hasis;

(&) the Directors have lad down internal financial controls o be followed by the company and that such intemnal
financial contrals are adeguate and are operating effectively, and

MMy the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Corporate Governance

The Companv 15 committed to mamtain high standards of Corporate Governance. The Report on Corporate
Governance as stipulated under the Listing Regolations forms part of this Annual Report, Since Regulation |5 of
Listing Regulations is not applicable to the Company, Certificate from Statutory Auvditor” Practicing Company
Secretary regarding compliance ol conditions of Corporate Governance was not abtained.

Risk Management

Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 21 and Pant b of Schedule 1 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
[Msclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBT LODR), the Company has constituted a Risk Management
Committee (RMC), consisting of Board members and senior executives of the Company,

The Company has in place 2 Risk Management framework to identify, and evaluate business risks and challenges cross
the Company, both at the corporate level and also separately for each business division. The Company has a robust
process for managing the key risks overseen by the RMO. As part of this process, the Company has identified the risks
with the highest impact and then assigned a likely probability of occurrence. Mitigation plans for each risk have also
been put in place and are reviewed by the management every six months before presenting to the RMC. The RMC has
set out a review process to report to the Board on the progress of the initiatives for the major risks of cach of the
businesses.

The Company has 8 Board of Direciors approved Risk Management Policy which may be accessed on the Company’s
wehsite at the link httpoivww sicapital co inpdfipoliciesiiski 20man ent%20policy, pdf

Internal Control systems and adeguacy

The Company’s internal control system is properly placed and strengthened taking into account the nature of business
and size of operations. Periodic audits provide reasonable assurance that the Company’s internal financial controls are
adeguate.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The Board Composition as on March 31, 2024 15 as follows:

5, No. | Name of Directors Desiznation

1 Mir. Sreeram Gopinathan Nair Managing Director

2 fdr, Thandassery Balachandran Ramakrishnan | Won-Executive Director

3 CA Unmknshnan Anchery Maon-Executive Direcion

4 D, Anil Menon Mon-Executive Dhrector

5 Mrs. Jitha Chummar Non-Executive Dinector

[+] Mr, Anu Thomas Cheriyvan Mon-Executive Director

7 Mr. Faul K K MNon-Executive Dinector

B M, Rajesh Marayvan Pillai Mon-Executive Independent Dirgctor
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9 Mr, Vinod Manazhy Mon-Executive Independent Director
10 Mr. Abraham George Mon-Executive Independent Director
11 MM, Thomas Jacob Mot-Executive Independent Director
12 Sujith K. Ravindranath Companv Secretary

13 ] Ajeesh Karekkattil Antomy | Chief Financial Officer

Change in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel duving the year 2023-24

a) Mr. Habeeh Rahiman resigned from the office of Independent Director wee . June 02, 2023,
b} CS Akhil T M resigned from the office of Company Secretary w.e.[ November 25, 2023,

e) S Sujith K Ravindranath was appointed as Company Secretary w_e.f January 16, 2024,

d} The appointment of Mr K K Paul was regularized in the EGM held in the year 2023,

Change in Direcrors and Key Managerial Personnel after the financial year 2023-24 and wp to the dare of the report

g)  Mr, Jayson A, Mekkattukulam was appointed as the Chiel Executive Officer of the Company on May 28,
2024,

by Mr Jyotthish A R was appointed as the Chiel Operating Officer of the Company on May 28, 2024

e)  Mr. Srecram Gopinathan Nair resigned from the post of Managing Director wee.f. June 14, 2024

dy Mr. Rajesh Narayan Pillai resigned from the post of Non-Executive Independent Director we.f June 18, 2024,

Declaration of Independent Directors

The Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the eriteria as mentioned in Section 149 of the Companices
Act, 2013 and SEBRI ( Listing Ohligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Act, 2005 by submitting a Declartion towards
this end to the Company.

Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

[n line with the requirements of the Act and the SEBI LODH, the Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party
Tranzactions. All contracts arrangements! transactions entered by the Company during the financial vear with related
parties were in its ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis, Particulars of material contracts/
arrangements with related parties are annexed with this report in Form AOC-2 as Annexure — 1, Members may refer
o Mote 39 o the Financial Statement which sets out related party disclosures pursuant o Tnd AS.

The Policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website and can
be accessed at htpe/fwww sicapital.co.in/pdffpolicies Related? s 20Pary®e2 0T ransaction % 20Policy. pdf
[nvestors/ Policies

Nomination & Remuneration Policy

The Board of Directors has adopted a policy on comprising of eriteria for determining qualification, positive attributes,
and independence of Dircctors as laid down by the Nomination & Remuoneration Committee of the Board in
compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act. The Policy is available on Company™s website and can be
accessed at hittpe/www.sicapital.co.in/pdfpolicies Nominations20& %2 0Remuneration 20 Policy. pdf

The Board has made a formal evaluation of its own performance, committees of the Board and Independent Directors
as per the above policy and is satisfactory over its performance,

Auditors and Auditors® Report

1} Statutory Auditor
Mis, Awyar & Cherian, Chartered Accountant, (Firm Registration Mo, (002845), appointed for a term of 5 (five)
consecutive years at the Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2020, continnes as Statutory Auditor of
the Company. The notes annexed to the Financial Statements referred in the Independent Auditors™ Reports are

gelf- explanatory and do not call for any firther comments. The Auditor's Report does not contain any

s
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qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclanmer.
There were no frauds reported by the statutory anditors to Audit Committee or Board under Section 143 of the
Axt,

bl Secretarial Anditor
The Board appointed M/s, Liva & Associates, Company Secretary in practice (CP No, 19314) o conduct
Secretarial Aundit for the financial yvear 2023-24. The Secretarial Anditor’s Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

Secretarial audit report for year ended on March 31, 2024 is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure — 11 to
this Report,

Meetings of the Board

10 Mectings of the Board of Directors were held during the year. The particulars of the meeting held and attended by
cach Director are detailed in the Corporate Governance Report.

Committees of the Board

In complianee with the provisions of Section 177 & 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board constituted Audit
Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, The Company has
also constituted Risk Management Commirtee, pursuant to Scale Based Regulations issued by the Reserve Bank of
India. The details of the composition of committees and their meetings and attendance of members are given in the
Caorporate Governance Report,

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has established a robust Vigil Mechanism and a Whistleblower policy in accordance with the provisions
of the C Um]‘mnm Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, The Whistle Blower Policy & Vigil mechanism is available on

company’'s website and can be accessed al -
http-ifwewew. sicapital.co in/pdfipoliciesMhistie % 20 Blower % 20Policy %2 08 % 20Vigil th20Mechanism . pdf

Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace. During the Financial Year 2023-24, the
Company has not received any complainis,

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments made on under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 20013
There were no loans or guaraniees made by the Company under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2003 during the
vear under review. The pariculars of Investments made by the Company are given in Note 11 to the Financial
Statements.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The Company has taken reasonable steps to conserve energy by supporting go green initiatives. The Company Tollows
the practice of purchasing energy efficient electrical! electronic equipments for its operations, The Capital Investment

on energy conservation equipment is nil,

The Company 15 making use ol the technology platform o ease of operations and o provide beiter services o il
CUsLOmers.

There were no Foreign Exchange Inflow and Outflow during the vear under review.,

Annual Return

The Annual Return as required under Section 92 and Section 134 the Act read with Rule 12 of the Companies
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(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 15 awvallable on the Company's website at
hitps:(twww_sicapital co.infpdffannual-relumsiAnnual % 20 Return %202023-24 _pdl

Particulars of employees and related disclosures

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company is anmexed herewith as Annexure 1L

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the names of the top ten employees in
terms of remuneration drawn forms part of this Report. Having regard to the provisions of the second proviso to Section
136(1) of the Act and as advised, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent to the members
of the Company. Any member interested in obtaining such information may address their email to infofsicapital.co.in.

Listing with Stock Exchange

The Company has paid the Anmual Listing Fee for the FY 2023-24 to BSE Limited wherein the Company’s shares are
listed.

Compliance with NBFC Regulation

The Company has complied with the regulatory provisions of the Reserve Bank of India applicable to Non-Banking
Financial Company ~ Non Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company. The Company has not accepted
Public Deposits during the year under review. No Gold Auction happened this FY 2023-24

General

The Board of Directors state that no disclosure or reporting in respect of the following matters as there were no

transactions on these matters or as the provisions were not applicable to the Company during the year under review:

a) Details related to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act

b) lssue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise

¢) lssue of shares to employees of the Company under any Employees” Stock Option Scheme

d) Buyback of shares

¢) Significant or material orders passed by Repulators / Court / Tribunals impacting the going concern status and
company’s operation in future

f) Change in the nature of business in the Company.

g) Proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016

h) Corporate Social Responsibility mitiatives by the Company and constitution of CSK committee

i) Transfer of amount to Keserves

i) Transfer of Unclaimed dividend/ shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund (1EPF)

k) Particulars of Associate, Subsidiary and Joint Venture

I} Maintenance of Cost Records

m) Statement of deviation{s) or variation(s) in use of issue procesds

n) Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications

Acknowledgements

Your directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the commitment extended by the employees of the
Company during the year. Further, the Directors also wish to place on record the support which the Company has
received from its promoters, shareholders, bankers, business associates, vendors and customers of the Company

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sdi-

Vinod Manazhy
Date: 13-08-2024 Chairman
Place : Thrissur DIN: (R986929
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Annexure - 1
FORM NO. AQC -2
Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)

Eum, 2014

isclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub
kection (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso
thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

Particulars Details
Mame (s) of the related party & natre of Nil
relationship

Mature of contracts/amangements/transaction
Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/iransaction

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements
or transaction including the value, if amy

Date of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length basis:

Particulars Dietails

MName (s5) of the | Sharewealth Securitics Limited Mr. Anoop Jolly BKP Commercial India
related party & Holding Company Relative of Director Private Limited, a Company
nature of in which the Director is
relationship interested
Mature of contracts/ | Interest paid on Subordinated Rent paid Granting of term loan
arrangements/ Dbt

transaction

Duration of the Ongoing 11 months 12 months
contracis/

arrangements/

transaction

Salient terms of the Ks.0.53 lakhs Rs. 1.80 Lakhs Rs.38 Lakhs
contracts or

arrangements  or

transaction

including the value,

if any

Date of approval by 13-05-2022 13-05-2022 10-11-2023

the Board

Amount paid as No No No
advances, if any

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Vinod Manazhy
Dhate: 13-08-2024 Chairman
Place : Thrissur DIN: 08986929
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
for the financial yvear ended March 31, 2024
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2003 and Rule 9 of the Companies {Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2004]
To,
Ihe Members,

B.0.Capital & Financial Services Limited
CIN : LoT190TZ1 994 PLCOS0490
MO.27. First Floor, Mew Scheme Road, Pollachi, Coimbatore, Tamilnadu 642001

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by S.1.Capital & Financial Services Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audi
wis conducted in a manner that provided me reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion therson.

Based on my verification of the Company’s Books, Papers. Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed with various
repulatory anthorities and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authonzed representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, T herehy report
that in my opinion, the company has, during the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 (" Audit Period”) complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance
mechamsm i place (o the extent, in the manner and subject to reporting made herenafier,

I further report that maintenance of proper and updated Books, Papers, Minute Books, filing of Forms and Returns
with applicable regulatory authorities and maintaining other records is the responsibility of the management of tha
Company, my responsibility is to verify the content of the decuments produced before me, to make objective evaluation
of the content in respect of compliance and report thereon.

I have examingd on test check basis, the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and produced before us for the financial vear ended March 21, 2024, as per the provisions
of-

The Companies Act, 2003 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
The Securities Contracts ( Begulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder:
The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-law framed thereunder:
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct [nvestmaent;
5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India | 1992
{ * SEBI Act™);
1. The Sccwrities and Exchange Board of India ( Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers
Regulations, 201 1:
The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015,
The Securities and Exchange Board of Tndia ( Tssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations
2018;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit) Regulations 2021;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India { Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
The Securitics and Exchange Board of India { Registration (o an Issue and Share Transfers Agents
Regulations, 1993;
7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
8. The Securities and Exchange Board of India { Buyback of Securities ) Regulations, 200 8;

Ealh ol
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6. The following laws, regulations, directions, orders applicable specifically to the Company:
1. The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
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i BMaster Direction ~Feserve Bank of India (Filing of Supervisory Feturns) Directions <2074 and Master
Direction- Mon-Banking Financial Company Returns (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (until the period it
was applicable)

ini. Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —

Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 and Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Mon-
Svstemically Important Mon-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (until the period it
was applicable)

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clause of the following:

L The Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secrctanies of India,
II.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguiremenis) Regulations
2015,

Dunng the peniod under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Giuidelines, Standards, etc mentioned above,

On the basis of the information and explanation provided, the Company had no transaction during the penod under
Audit requiring the compliance of applicable provisions of Act/ Regulations / Directions as mentioned above in respect
ol

L. Foreign Direct Investment, External Commercial Borrowings and Owverseas Direct lnvestment,
i Bury-back of securitiss,

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constitued with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Mon-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice 15 given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent al least seven days in advance, and a system exisis for seeking and obiaining further information and clarification
on the agenda items hefore the meeting and for meaningful participation at the mecting.

Majority decision is carried through and proper syvstem is in place which facilitates / ensure to capture and record, the
dissenting member's vicws, if any, as part of the Minutes.

[ further report that there are adequate svstems and processes in the Company conmmensurate with the size and
operations ol the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit pericd, there are no specific events ! actions having a major bearing on the
Company’s atfairs in pursiance of the laws, rules, regulations, suidelines, ete, referred to above.

For Liva and Associates

Sd/-

Liyva Antony

Company Secretary in Practice
Proprictor

ACS: 39611, CP: 19314

Place: Ernakulam

Date: 07082024

UTH™N 2 AD39a1 1 FOOD920887
Peer Review No 24822022

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as “ANNEXURE A™ and forms an integral
part if this report.




rital & Financial Services Limited

To,

The Members,

S.1.Capital & Financial Services Limited

CIN : LT I90TA 1994 PLCO0490

MNiL2T, First Floor, New Scheme Road, Pollachs, Coimbatore, Tamilnadu 642001

My report of even date i fo be read along with this letter.

1.

For Liva and Associates

Liva Antony
Company Secretary in Practice
Proprictor

ACS: 39611, CP: 19314

Place: Ernakulam

Date: 07/08,/2024

UDIN : AN 1FMAO920887
Peer Review No 2482/2022

“ANNEXURE A™

Maintenance of Sccretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility
15 1o express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our aodit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretanal records. The verification was done on the test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. [ believe that the processes and practices, 1 followed provide
a reasonable basis for our apinion.

I have not verified the correctness and appropriatencss of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.

Where ever required, 1 have obtained the Management representation about compliance of laws, mles and
regulations and happenings of events ete.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, mules, regulations, standards 15 the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis,

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
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Anmexure -
Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Compa
(Appointment and Remuneration of managerial personnel) Rules, 20014

i. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employvees of the Compamy
for the financial year 2023-24:

Mr. Sreeram Gopinathan Nair, Managing Director o2
Mote: The medman remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 15 Rs. 1 5000.00

ii. Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial (fficer, Chief Executive officer)
Company Secretary or Manapger, if any, in the Financial Year 2023-24:

Name of Director/ Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)  Percentage increase or decrease in

remuneration
Mr. Sreeram Gopiathan Nair, Managing Director {11
Mr.Ajeesh Karekkattil Antony, Chief Financial Officer 17 %
Mir. Sujith K Ravindranath, Company Secretary MNA (as newly joined)

iii. Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employvees in the financial vear 2023-24: -0.11%
1v. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 29 employees as of March 31, 2024

v. Averape percentile increase already made in the salares of employees other than the managerial personnel iny
the last fimancial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point oul if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial

FETLnEraton
Percentage increase in Salary of employee other than managerial personnel 16.72%
Percentape increase in Salary of Managernial Personinel 2%
Justification for percentage increase i managerial remuneration MN.AL
Exceptional circumstance for increase in managerial remuneration M.A.
vi. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration Policy of the Company:
The remuneration paid to the Directors and Key managerial Personnel are as per the Nominatwon &
Remuneration Policy of the Company
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Vinod Manazhy
Drate: 13-08-2024 Chairma
Place : Thrissur DIN: 0898692
30TH ANNUAL REPORT 2023 - 24 D ’
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The report on Corporate Governance s pursuant to Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V' of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2013 {the SEBI LODR). The Company has complied with the
applicable requirements of the SEB] LODR and amendments thereto, The Board present the Company’s Report on
Corporate Governance for the financial year 2023-24,

Company's Philosophy on Code of Governance

Corporate Governance 15 indispensable tor the profitability, growth and survival of a company through creation and,
cnhancement of value to stakeholders, The Company belicves that robust corporate governance system bascd on trust
and relationship building will endure value to all stakeholders. Corporate Governance Philosophy envisages striving
for excellence in all facets of its operations through socially and environmentally acceptable means. The Company wants
1o be a responsible corporate citizen and share the benefits with society and also will make its customers, emplovecs,
suppliers, sharcholders and other stakeholders feel proud of their association with the Company through highest level
of fairness and transparency in its dealings.

Board of Drectors

@, Composition of the Board

As on March 31, 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company comprised of 11 (Eleven) Directors. The categories of
Directors are detailed below. The Composition of the Board as mentioned in Regulation 17 of SEBI {Listing
Ohbligations & Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™) is not applicable to the Company
15 the Company has not crossed the threshold mentioned in Regulation 15 of the Listing Regulations,

As on March 31, 2024

Name of the Director Category

Mr, Sreeram Gopinathan Nair Managing Director

Mir. Thandassery Balachandran Famakrishnan MNon-Executive Director

CaA Unnikrishnan Anchery Mon-Executive Director

Dr. Anil Menon MNon-Executive Director

Mrs. Jitha Chummear Non-Executive Director

Mr, Anu Thomas Cherivan Mon-Executive Director

Mr. Kuriakkose Paul Kannanaiklkal MNon-Executive Director

Mr. Rajesh Maravan Pillai MNon-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Vinod Manazhy MNon-Exeentive Independent Director
Mr, Abraham George MNon-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Thomas Jacob MNon-Executive Independent Director

The profile of Directors ean be accessed on the Company’s website at hitpz/www.sicapital.co.in/corporate-

Muotes:

As on March 31, 2024, sharcholding of the directors is as follows:

1. Mr Anu T Cheriyan - 400000 equity shares
2. Mr. Kuriakkose Paul Kannanaikkal — 100 equity shares
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b, Aftendance at the meeting of Board of Directors and Iast Annual General meefing

Name of the Director No. of Board Attendance
Meetings Meeting of Board 29" Annual
entitled to ol DMreciors General Meeting
attend
Mr. Srecram Gopinathan Nair )] 10 T
Mr. Thandassery Balachandran 10 0& b
Ramakrshnan
Dr. Anil Menon 10 0s Y
Mrs. Jitha Chummar 10 07 Y
Mr. Rajesh Marayan Pillai 10 10 bl
Mr. ¥Winod Manazhy I 10 Y
CA. Unnikrishnan Anchery 14 0% N
W, Abraham George i 08 b
Dr. Habeeh Rahiman® Q2 1 N
Mr. Anu Thomas Cheriyvan 10 10 Y
Mr. Thomas Jacob 10 10 Y
Mr. Kunakkose Paul Kannanaikkal 10 08 N
Mistes
1. * Dr. Habeeb Rahiman resigned from the post of Director w.e.f. 02" June 2023
¢. Other Directorships or Memberships in Committees
Name of the Director Other Other Membership® Other Listed Entities in
Directorship Member Chairman which he is a D¥rector
Mr. Sreeram Gopinathan Nair - - - -
Mr. Thandassery Balachandran 2 1 - -
Ramakrishnan
L. Anil Menon 1 - - o
Mrs, Jitha Chummar 1 2 - -
Mr. Rajesh Narayan Pillai 1 1 1 Sungold Capital Limited
—Non-ExecutiveDirector
Mr. Vinod Manazhy 1 - - -
CAL Unmikrishnan Anchery 13 1 - -
Mr. Abraham George - - - -
Mr. Anu Thomas Cheriyvan 4 - - -
Mr. Thomas Jacob - - - -
Mr. Kuriakkose Paul Kannanaikkal - - - -

*hembershipis)’ Chairmanship(s) of only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee im all public

limited companies have been considered,

d. Board Meetings
The details of Ten Board Meetings held during the financial year 2023-24 are given below;

Date Board Strength N, of Directors present
08.04.2023 12 07
25052023 12 12
16062023 11 0z
09.08.2023 11 10
31082023 11 0o
10.11.2023 11 11
16.01.2024 11 11
12022024 I 11
29022024 11 s
11.03.2024 11 11

30TH ANNUAL REPORT 2
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&, =kills " Expertfise and Compefence of Board of Directors

Mame of the Direcior Skills / Expertise / Competence

bAr. Sreeram Gopinathan Mair Professional / Industry knowledge and experience / Leadership ¢ Ethics
bAr. Thandassery Balachandran Ramakrishnan Professional / Industry knowledge and experience ! Leadership £ Ethics
Dr. Anil Menon Professional ¢ Industry knowledge and experience / Leadership ¢ Ethics
bdr=. Jitha Chumimar Professional / Industry knowledge and experience / Leadership ¢ Ethics
Pir. Rojesh Morayan Pillai Professional / Industry knowledge and experience ! Leadership £ Ethics
B, Wined Manazhy Professional £ Industry knowledpe and experience ! Leadership ! Ethics
CA Unnikrishnan Anchery Professional / Industry knowledpe and experience / Leadership | Ethics
bAr. Abraham George Professional / Industry knowledpe and experience / Leadership / Ethics
b, Anu Thomas Cheriyvan Professional / Industry knowledpe and experience ( Leadership ¢ Ethics
Belr, Thomas Jacoh Professionul £ Industry knowledpe and experience ! Leadership ! Ethics
bAr. Kurigkkose Paul Kannanaikkal Professional / Industry knowledpe and experience / Leadership / Ethics

. Confirmation on Independence
Based on declarations received from independent divectors and performanes evaluation, the Board of Directors
herekw opine that the independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in Securities and Exchange Board Of
India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Kegulations, 2005 and are independent of the
Management,

g Bricl note on Directors secking appaintment / re-appointment: Annexure -

b, Board Committees
Your Company’s Board of Directors had constituted the following mandatory Committees to comply the
reguirements under the Companies Act, 2003 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2005 viz. (i} Audit Committes; (i) Momination and Remuneration Committee; (iii) Stakeholders”
Relationship Committee amd (ivIRisk Management Committee

Audit Committee
The Committee is mandated with the same terms of reference as specified in Section 177 of the Companics Act,
2003 read with applicable Rules made thereunder.
The Audit Committes of the Board provides reassurance to the Board on the existence of an effective internal
control environment that ensures:
a.  efficiency and efTectiveness of operations;
b, safepuarding of assels and adequacy of provisions for all liabilities;
c. reliabilicy of financial and other management information and adequacy of disclosures. compliance with all
r{"IEVH]'Il slatubes,
The role of the Committes includes the following:
i Tooversee the Company’s Onancial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible;
ii.  Torecommend the appointment, remuneration, terms of appointment and removal of Statutory Auditors,
and to review the manner of rotation of Statutory Auditors;
i Torecommend the appointment, remuneration and removal of Cost Auditors, where necessary;
iv.  Toapprove transactions of the Company with related parties, including modifications thereto;
v.  Toreview and monitor the Statutory Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of the
audit process;
vi,  Toevaluate the Company’s internal financial controls and risk management systems;
wil.  Toreview with the management the following:
a,  Annual finencial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon before submission to the Board for
approval;
b, Quarterly Anancial statements before submission w the Board for approval;

vill,  Toreview the following:

¢, Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

4. Adeguacy of internal control systems and the Company's statement on the same prior to
endersement by the Board, such review to be done in consultation with the management, Statutory,
and Internal Auditors;

¢ Repors of Internal Audit and discussion with Internal Auditers on any significant findings and
follow-up thereon:

£ System/manner of maintenance, storage, retrieval, display, print ouwt, and security of books of
account of the Company maintained in the electronic form:




N i

Capital & Financial Services Limited

g. Functioning of Whistle Blower Mechanism in the Compeany

Composition, Name of members / Chairman, Meetings held and members present during the vear 2023-24: During
the financial vear 2023-24, the Audit Committee met Four tmes on May 25, 2023, August (4, 2023, November
10, 2023 and February 12, 2024,

Mame of the Member No of Aundit Mo of Audit
Category Committee Committee
meeting held | meeting attended

Mr, Rajesh Maravan Fillai - Non- Executive Independent Director 4 4
{(Chairman}

Mr. Vinod Manazhy ﬁq:z;rlili::;ul1k'¢ Independent Director
V] L=
Mon- Executive Independent Director

Mr. Abraham Georpe (Member)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Commitiee shall formulate for determining qualifications, posifive attributes and independence of a Director and
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managenal Personnel and other
employees.

The Committee shall identify the persons who are qualified to become Directors / Senior Management Personnel ofthe
Company in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend (o the Board their appointment, the remuneration
including commission, perquisites and benefits pavable to the Directors and their removal. It shall also carry out the
evaluation of every Director’s performance.

Composition, Mame of Members / Chairman, Meetings held and Members present during the yvear 2023-24:
During the financial vear 2022-23, Nomination and Remuneration Committee met twe times on December 07, 2023,
and February 12, 2024,

Name of the Member “ategory No of NRC No of NRC
meeting held  mecting attende

Mr, T B Ramakrishnan Nen-Exceutive Director 2 2
{Member)

Mr. Vinod Manazhy Mon- Executive [Independent Director 2 2
(Member)

Mr. Rajesh Narayan Pillai - Non-Executive Independent Director 2 2
{Chairman)

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Beard of Dircctors has adopted a pelicy on comprising of criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes,
and independence of Dhirectors as laid down by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board in
cornpliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act. The Policy is available on Company™s website and can be
accessed at

hittp:/fwww sicapital.co.in/pdfpolicies/Nomination®20& ¥ 20Remunerationa 20Policy. pudf

Remuneration of Directors

Adl the Directors are paid with sitting fees of Rs 1000/~ {Rupees One Thousand only) for the Board Meetings attended
by them. They have given waiver of sitting fees for all the Committee meetings in which they are members and certain
Board Meetings, Directors were not granted stock options during the vear under review.

TH ANNUAL REPORT
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A amount of Re 535 0007- was paid o Mr. Sreeram Gopinathan Nair, Managing Director, as travelling allowancd
Huring the financial vear 2023-24, The amount was paid pursuant to the provisions of sections 196,197, 198 and other
ipplicable provisions, if any, of the Companics Act. 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2004 read with Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013 and subject 1o the provisions of

Articles of Association of the Company. The members of the Company have ratified his remuneration vide an ordinary
resolution at the Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2020.

The details of sitting fees paid to the directors during the financial vear 2023-24 are given below;

MName of the Director Sitting Fees
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Mr. Sreeram Gopinathan Nair 010
Mr. Thandassery Balachandran Ramakrishnan 0.03
Dr. Anil Menon 0.10
Mrs, Ditha Chunmumear 008
Mr. Rajesh Narayan Pillai 0,10
Mr. Vinod Manazhy 0.10
CA Unnikrishnan Archery 0.08
D, Habeeb Rahiman 0.02
Mr. Abraham George 0.02
Mi. Ar Thomas Cheriva 0.10
Mr. Thomas Jacob 0o
hr. Kuriakkose Paul Kannanaikkal (.08
Total 0.97

e Company has not granted anv stock options to its Directors.

Performance evaluation criteria for independent Directors

The Company, on an annual basis, inter-alia evaluates the performance of independent directors of the Company by
‘eer Review Process based on the following criteria - Participation in Board / Committee Meetings, Managing
Relationship, Konowledge and Skill and other attnbuies viz, standards of ethics and mtegeity, mdependent judgement
PWareness on corporate governance, up to date knowledge, adherence to code of conduct and maintenance of
confidentiality.

stakeholders Relationship Committee
Composition, Name of Members / Chairman, Meetings held and Members present during the year 2023-24:

Name of Member Category Date of Meeting/
Attendance
10.11.2023
Mr. Thomas Jacoh hﬂn-_]-.xuculwc Independent Director Yes
{Chairman)
Mr. T B Ramakrishnan Mon-Executive Director Yeas
iMember)
Mr Abraham George MNon-Executive Independent Directos Yes
Member)

Mame of Compliance Officer for 2023-24; Mr. Sujith K Ravindranath, Company Sceretary & Compliance Officer
Mumber of Investor complaints received ! resolved / pending: Nil / Nil / Nil

Risk Management Committes
I'he objective of Risk Management at 5.1, Capital & Financial Services Limited is to ereate and protect shareholder
value by minimizing threats or losses, and identifving and maximizing opportunities, An enterprise-wide risk

management framewaork is applied so that effective management of risks is an integral part of every emplovee’s job.

TH ANNUAL REPORT
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Name of Member

Mr. T B Ramakrishnan

Mr. Sreeram Cropinathan

Mair
Mr. Abraham George

Mr, Ajecsh Karckkatnl
Antony

Category

Compaosition, Naime of Members "Chairman, Meetings held and Members present during the vear 20003-23:

Mon-Exccutive Dircetor
{Chairman)

Manazing Director { Member)

MWon-FExecutive Independent Director
{Member)

CFO

Date of Meeting' | Date of Meeting/
Attendance Attendance
A1.08.2023 11.03.2024

Yes Yes
Tes Yas
Yes Yes
Ves Yes

Independent Directors” Commitiee
Composition, Name of Members/ Chairman, Meetings held, and Members present during the vear 2023-24;

MName of Member Category Date of Mecting/
Attendance
11-03-2024
M. Absaham George T\nr!-_]'-fx{:cuhw: Independent Director S
{Chairman)
Mr. Vinod Manazhy hun-]:}-cfu..-um': Independent Director Yes
{Member)
Mr. Rajesh Narayan Pillai T‘.un-]".ne!fulwc Independent Director Ves
: { Member)
Mr. Thomas Jacob Mon-Executive Independent Director S

i Member)

Annual General Meetings
The date. time, and venue of the Annual General Meetings held during the preceding three vears and the special
resolutions passed thereat, are as follows;

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Postal Ballot
Mo Special Resolution was passed through Postal Ballot during the financial year 2023-24, There 15 no immediate
proposal for passing any resolution through postal ballot.

Conferencing’ Other
Aundio-Visual Means

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
The quarterly / half vearly annual financial results of the Company were published in Business Line (English) and
The Hindu (Tamily in the respective guarters. The financial results, the annual reports of the Company and other
corporate announcements were uploaded on the Company’s website: www sicapital.co.in.

Year Date Time Venue Special Resolutions Passed

2022-23 27092023 11.30 AM  Through Video Mo Special Resolution was passed
Conferencing'  Other
Audie-Yisual Means

2021-22 16.09.2022 0200 FPM  Through ; Video 1. Change fn name of the company and
Cunl_"crcn_r.jmgi Dth‘?"r consequent change in Memorandum
Audio-Visual Mcans and Article of Association

2020-21 24002021 0200 PM  Through Video

Mo Special Resolution was passed

0TH ANNUAL REPORT
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Payment of Listing Fees

Annual General Meeting 20.09.2024

Finangial Y car 1 st April to 31 st March
Dividend Pavment Date WA

Listing on Stock Exchange BSE Ltd

Phiroze Jegjeehhoy Towers,
Dalal Strect, Mumbai — 400 (4]

Scrip'Stock Code
ISIN Number for NSDL & CDS

Scrip Code: 530907
INE417FO1017

Payment of Depository Fees

Annual Custody’ Issuer Fegs have been paid by the Company
hased on the Invoices received from both depositories

Stock Market Price Data®

Month High Price
{In Rs.)
April 2023 1R 45
May 2023 38.04
June 2023 31.50
July 2023 32.50
August 2023 3088
September 2023 2980
October 2023 32.50
MNovember 2023 31,00
December 2023 31.40
Januvary 2024 3192
February 2024 3097
March 2024 31.60

Low Price Yolume

(In Rs.) {No.)
3103 4009
2708 6134
28.50 20780
3088 59
3088 100
20 410 401
27.30 10715
27.10 2RG9
28.50 4473
2573 4335
2449 8521
24.50 148649

Share Transfer System

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
Link Intime India Private Limited

“Buryva”, 35, Mayilower Avenue, Belund Senthul Nagar, Sownpalayam Road, Coumbatore — 641028
Phone; 0422 4958995, 2539835 / 836

*This information is compiled from the data available on the website of BSE Limited.

Email: coimbatoreralinkintime.co.in

As mandated by SEBL the securities of the Company can be traded’ transferred only in dematerialized form.
Shareholders holding shares in physical form are advised to avail the facility of dematerialization.

Sharcholding Pattern as on March 31, 2024

5. Category of No. of Total number % of Mo, of % of Shareholding
MNao.  Shareholders Share of Shares Sharcholding Warrants assuming Tull
holders conversion of
Warrants
A Promoter &
Promoter Group
1 Indian 1 18.43.391 51.20 - 51.20
2 Forcign - - - - -
Total (A1 + A2) 1 18,43.391 51.20 - 5120
B Public Shareholding
1 Imstitutions 1 92040 M)25 - .25
2 Mon-Institulions 1713 1747409 48.35 - 48.53
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Total (B1 + B2) 1716 17,560,608 48.50 - 48,50
C Non-Promoter Non- - - - = -
Public
| Total (A+ B+ C) 177 36,00,000 100 - 100 |
Distribution of Sharcholding by Size as on March 31, 2024
Category (Based on Nuo, of U Shareholding (In Rs.) 4%
Value) Shareholders
Lp to 5,000 1335 7797 2704240 T.53
5,001 — 10,000 193 11.24 15,596,350 4.43
10,001 — 20,000 72 419 1081590 200
20,001 — 30,000 70 4.07 17, 70,070 4.92
30,001 — 40,000 Lo 0.58 3.33.630 (.98
40,001 — 50,000 i 0.52 4,271,000 1.17
S0,001 — 1,000,000 1 0.93 12,32 1) 342
L0000 & Above 12 0.70 268 40,960 7455
Total 1717 10 (M) 3,60,00,000 1O (HR
Dematerialization of Shares
Moaode of Shareholding Mao. of Shares e
CDSL 2513223 69 8 1%
MN5DOL 3,45.327 o.60Y
Fhysical T.41.450 205590
Total 36, 040, 0040 100

Convertible Warrants

The Company had allotted 4,00,000 Convertible Warrants of Rs. of Rs. [0/~ cach on the premium of Rs. 15/~ to the
promoter group and Mr. Anu Thomas Cherivan during the year 2022-23, The promoters have converted their warrant
and allotted an equal number of Equity shares during the vear 2022-23. Mr. Anu Thomas Cheriyan converied the
warrants into fully paid equity shares of equal number on 05% October 2023

Credit Ratings and revisions
N.A

Address for Correspondence

Registrar & Transfer Agents Company

Link Intime India Private Limited Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
“Hurya”, 33, Mayllower Avenue, Behind Senthil 27 First Floor, Mew Scheme Road,
Magar, Sowripalavam Road, Coimbatore — 641028 Pallachi — 642001, Tamil Madu

Phone: 0422 4058005, 2530835 / 836 Ph: 04259 233304/05

E-mail [D: eoimbatoreid linkintime. co.in e-mail! infofsicapital.co.in

Penalty imposed by Statutory Authority during last three vears

During the Financial wvear 2020-21, regarding contravention of Para 5(1), Section V' of Master Direction on Money
Changing Activities dated January 1, 2016 (Updated as on March 29, 2009) and subsequent receipt of a show cause
niice from the Reserve Bank of India highlighting the contravention and imposition of a monetary penalty of INR

0TH ANNUAL REPORT




h

S.I1. Capital & Financial Services Limited

[0,0000- agaimst the company under Section TT3) of FEMA, T999. Tn this regard, the Company has paid the penalty]
of Rs, 10,000/~ and took necessary steps to ensure compliance reganding the same in the future.

WVigil Mechanism
The Whistle Blower Policy & Vigil mechanism is available on company’s website and can be accessed at]
htto/f'www_sicapital co.in/odfip olicies Whistle% 20Blower’20Folicv%208% 20 Vigil %20 Mechanism od f

(Certificate on Non-Disgualification of Directors

The Certificate on Mon-Disqualification of Directors of the Company obtained from Mrs. Liya Antony, Compamny
Secretary in Practice is annexed as Annexure — 2.

Fees paid to Statutory Auditor

The Statutory Auditors were paid Bs.1.90 Lakhs during the year 2023-24; particulars of fee paid are given in Mote
33(i) of Audited Financial Statements forming part of this Annual Report

ILoan and advances to related parties / entities

The particulars related to Loan to related entities are detailed in Note.39 of Audited Financial Statements forming par
of this Annual Report

Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013

No. of Complaints filed / disposed during the year and pending as on end of financial year: NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Vinod Manazhy
Dvate: 13-08-2024 Chairman
Place : Thrissur DIM: 08986929

DECLARATION

I, Jayson A Mekkattukulam, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby state that the members of beard of]
directors and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Jayson A Mekkattukulam
Drate: 13-08-2024 Chief Executive Officer
Place : Thrissur
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BRIEF NOTE ON DIRECTOR(S) SEEKING APPOINTMENT OR RE-APPOINTMENT
{Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) SEBIf Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2013

Annexure —

Mame & DN

Mr. Ramakrishnan T B (DIS: 01a01072)

Ma. Jitha Chummar (DIY: 02582004)

Date of Birth 07051963 [ERTENLE

Ape Bl Years 39 Years

Expenence Mare then 33 vears of experience in stock broking | More than M) years of experience in
business. stock broking

Cealifications B.S¢, PGP in Portfolio Management and Research | MBA — Finance

Analysis

Terms ad Conditions of Appoiniment

Mon-Executive Non-Indeperndent Director, liable
Ly retare b:.' modadion

Mon-Executive Non-Independent
Director, hihle b retine by rotat on

Dietails of remuncration sought o be paid and
the remuneration last drvan

Last Reappointment as Divector

Date of first appointment on Board and Date of

Sitting fees for anending meetings of Board within
the lroit specified under the Companies Act, 2003

September 30, 20

September 16, 222

Sitting fees for atending meetings of
Board within the limdt specified under
the Compares Act, 20103

September 24, 2021

September 16, 2022

Sharcholding |
Company

Beneficial ownership in the

H|:|::I|ur|s|1i'p with other Threctors, Melanagmer amd
other Key Managerial Personne] of the company

KIL

Mol related o any  Dhnector by
Managerial Personnel except for his membership
and directorship held in Sharewealih Securites
Limated,

Manager |/

Nil

Mot related vo any Director ¢ Manager |
Key Managennl Persennel except for
her membership and directorship held
i Sharewealth Securies Limited,

s, of e ngs of the Roard pitended n:I|.||'||1|; the
period

7

Directorships held in other Companies

Sharewealth Secunties Limied, Moat Financial
Services Pravate Limited

Sharewealth Securities Limited

the Drirector as identified by the Momination
and Remuseration Committes {NREC) and the
manner in which the proposed person megts
such requirerneanis

Liated entities fromm which the proposed director | MIL ML
has T-:,'x.ll_lmﬂ i thie pasi three yErs
Skills and capabilities required for the role of A MA
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Aninexire — 7
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 343) and Schedule V' Para C clause (1001 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015}

Ta,

The Members

S0 Capital & Financial Services Limited

CIN : LOoT190T L1994 P LCO4049)

Mo.27, First Floor, Mew Scheme Road, Pollachi, Coimbatore Tamil Nadu 642001

In pursuance of Schedule ¥ Para C clause (1001} of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, it is hereby certified that none of the Directors on the Board have been debarred or disqualified
from continung as a Dhrector of Companyl(ies) by the Secunties and Exchange Board of India. the Mimstry of
Corporate Affairs, the Reserve Bank of India or such statutory authorities as on March 31, 2024,

Sd."_

Liva Antony

(Practicing Company Secretary)
Proprietor

ACS: 3611, CP: 19314

Peer Review Certificate no, 2482/2022
Place: Ernakulam

Date: 13/08/2024

UDIN: AQ3961 TFMG02ZES
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I T ANALYSIS REFORT

S Capital & Financial Services Limited (“51 Capital”’ “the Company™) is a Mon Deposit Taking Mon-Systemically
Important Non-Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Tt is an Associate Company
of Sharewealth Securities Limited. 51 Capital also possesses license to carry on the business of Full-Fledped Money
Changer, The Company has a diversified lending portfolio covering the retail and commercial customers,

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Glohal

The global economy 15 exhibiting resilience and fortitude, There ane, however, multiple challenges emanating from
still elevated inflation, tight monetary and financial conditions, escalating geopolitical tensions, rising geoeconomic
fragmentation, disruptions in kev global shipping routes, high public debt burdens and financial stability risks. Global
financial markets are on edge, with recurrent bouts of volatlity as every incoming data increases uncertaimty around
the monetary policy trajectories of major central banks.

India

Armdst global challenges, the Indian ceconomy exhibited robust growth in 2023-24, underpinned by strong investment
activity, amidst subdved external demand. Manufacturing and services sectors were the key drivers on the supply side
while agricultural activity slowed down due to uneven and deficient monsoon rainfall. The growth outlook remains
buoyvant, given the governments sustained focus on capital expenditure while maintaining fiscal conselidation. Strong
corporate balance sheets, nsing capacity wvilisation, double digit credit growth, healthy financial sector, and the
ongoing disinflation are likely to be other growth levers. Indian economy boasted an impressive growth rate of 7.8%
in the 2023-24 fiscal vear (FY')and exceeded the average G20 rate of 3.4%.

The Indian governments high capital spending has brought the fiscal deficit to 5.8% in FY 2023-24 and the combined
dieht-CGiIF w abowve pre-pandemic levels. The RBI paid a higher than expected dividend payout of Bs 2.0 frillien to the
government, v the expected Bs 009 trillion. This is hikely to lead to lower market borrowings in the second half of the
vear and consequently lower bond yields,

Indian stock markets have penerated an impressive performance during the FY 2023-24. The Mifty 50 index delivered
a substantial return of 29 percent in FY 24, According to the data shared by the National Stock Exchange (NSE), the
grovth of the Indian markets has marked the eighth consecutive vear of positive retums, Motably, the last instance of
negative retuns in the Indian market dates back to 2005, highlighting the consistent upward trajectory of Indian
euities.

Capital and asset quality of banks and NBFCs remain healthy, supporting the growth in bank credit and domestic
activity. Pre-cmptive regulatory measures aimed af curbing excessive consumer lending and bank lending to MBFCs,
and investments in alternate investment funds { AlFs) are expected to comain the build-up of potential siress in balance
sheets of financial intermediaries and contribute to financial stability.

While domestic hanks and MEFCs have exhibited the interest rate risk, banks may have to address both trading and
banking book riska. Accordingly, the RBI is striving (o make 1ts regulations more principle- based, activity-oriented
and proportionate to the scale of systemic risk, rather than entity-oriented.

NBFC Industry

The Mon-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) sector in lndia has undergone remarkable growih, establishing itself
as a significant plaver within the country's financial landscape. Also, the space as a whole, has wimessed notable
transformations ever since ils emergence, with segmenis such as housing finance, microfinance and consumer finance
contributing to its expansion. This growth is deiven by various factors, such as a rising middle class, enhanced financial
inclusion and positive policy interventions.

Credit growth has remained robust m FY 2023-24 backed by strong demand from consumers, the Government of
India’s (“Gol’s™) push on fnancial inclusion and ever-improving access to credit by way of increasing focus on
digitalization across the industry.
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he gold Toan industry, once viewed with skepticism a few years ago, has now eamed significant respectability. The
ongoing competition within this sector highlights s dynamic growth. While banks will remain key competitors
INBFCs are expected to maintain a crucial role due to their broader reach, greater flexibility, personalized servicg
fferings, and cutting-edge digital selutions. During the pandemic, gold loans emerged as a critical lifeline, especially
for MSMEs, the agricultural sector, small enterprises, and the unorganized sector. This importance is further
underscored by the consistent demand for such loans, reflecting their continued relevance as a vital credit source,

THE COMPANY — BUSINESS OVERYIEW & OUTLOOK
5. L Capital is a Non-Systemically Important Non-deposit-taking NBFC and a Full Fledged Money Changer, Your
company's focus is to extend credit to unbanked scctors of the cconomy. The Company’s dishursements stood at
P09 7T lakhs during the vear under review, an increase of 78.29%, reflecting the improved market conditions and
focused efforts of the company. Compared to previous financial year, Gold, personal and business loans increased by
308% , 36B46% and 112.36% respectivelv, an indicator of cconomy normalizing and overall posifive market
sentiment, while Term Loan and Yehicle Loan declined by 538.56% and 9.58 % respectively. The income from [orex
business recorded an increase of 27.63%.

RISK MANAGEMENT

As an NBFC, 81 Capital is exposed to liquidity. credit, interest. and market risk. The Company has a strong risk
management policy and will continue to invest in processes to build advanced risk management. A strong governance
framework ensures that the Board of Directors and it committees approve sk strategies and delegate eredit
wthoritics, Risk asscssment of customers 15 made at the time of initial appraisal for pricing and granting loans,

HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Company s relation with employees & Industrial Relations remained cordial duning the vear under review, and na
material developments occurred during that period. 29 emplovees werne on the payrolls of the Company as on 31*
March 2024,

SWOT ANALYSIS
Strength Well published brand image and well-defined management
Weakness Presence of accumulated loss
Opportunity Untapped market potential, continuing opportunities in unbanked sectors
Threat High competition

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company”s internal control svstem is properly placed and strengthened taking into account the nature of business
nd size of operations, Internal auditors conduct periedic audits and bring out any deviations in internal audit
procedures and their observations are periodically reviewed and compliance is ensured. The audit committee is
properly reviewing and monitoring this internal audit process.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Particulars Asom 3-03-2024  As on 31-03-2023 Explanation

Curreni Ratio 3.89 4.30 M.A.

Interest Coverage =2.44 -1.78 Debenture owstanding for the vear 23-24 is 427 and for 22-23
Ratio is 10%, 14, Funther, ICTY eutstanding remains unchanged for the

wesr 23-24, Subsequently, the interest lability also increased,
In addition to this the Loan Portfolio also mereased from
510,28 to 904,77

[ebt Equity Ratio 2,30 0,70 The Debenture and 10T liability for vear is 427 and 23,17
respectively but it was much less during last year. The loss of
the current financial wear is also included m equity, Thus
reduces the value of cquity, Hence the ratio increased from

0,70 10 2,30,
Operating Profit -7 -24.30 e loan size 15 increased to 909,77 as against 51028 and the
Margin (%) delay in recovery of EMEInterest Collection caused to the

increase m the ratio.
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N
MNet Prolit hargin (Fuf 4143 TGS The operating Toss and bad Teans have allected the Net
ProfitLoss. Hence the Net Protit margin has decreased.
Return on Met worth =024 (k013 Earnings on MNet waorth decreased due to subsequent mise in
Operating loss and resulted in increase of loss. Hence the return
on Met worth Ratio has decreased,
Information as required by the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 of
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2004, is given under: (Top 10
employees based on Annual Salary)
SLNo | Name of Employee Total remuneration
drawn 2023-24 { Amount
_in Rs.)
1 Hiju A Balan 6,75,160.00
1 Ajeesh K A |6, 10,000.00
3 Akhil T M 4. 80,000.01
4 Subin O B | 41926400
3 Wimal Joszph 3,30,90:0.00
[ Kanakaraj C 2,73,387.00
7 Sajeey P K 2,61,000.00
& Mecthu K 2.55112.00
9 Litta Saji 21215000
10 | Celine Xavier J 2,02 500,00
——————————————— N ’_
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To the Members of
S5.1. CAPITAL & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of S.L
CAPITAL & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (the company), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31% March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Laoss (Including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of changes in equity and Statement of Cash Flow for the
year ended and notes to financial statement including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein referred to as “standalone financial
statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act 2013 as amended (the “Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indian accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of
the Act read with the companies{Indian Accounting standards) Rules 201 5,as amended (“Ind
AS™and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31% March 2024, its loss including other comprehensive income, change in
equity and its cash flow for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion of the Financial Statement

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethies.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements, and
in forming owr opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matiers.

R al :-..r-l.r_. "
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I. FProvision for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on Loans

Management estimates impairment provision using Expected Credit loss model for the loan
exposure. Measurement of loan impairment involves application of significant judgement by
the management. The most significant judgements are:

Timely identification and classification of the impaired loans, and

Determination of probability of defaults (PD) and estimation of loss given defaults (LGD)
based on the value of collaterals and relevant factors,

The estimation of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial instruments involves significant
judgements and estimates, Following are points with increased level of audit focus:
Classification of asscts to stage 1. 2, or 3 using criteria in accordance with Ind AS 109;
Accounting interpretations, modelling assumptions and data used to build and run the
models; Measurement of individual borrowers”™ provisions assessment of multiple economic
SCCnarios,

The disclosures made in the financial statements for ECL especially in relation to judgements
and estimates by the Management in determination of the ECL. Refer note 43 to the
standalone financial statements.

Principle Audit Procedures:

We evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of controls across the processes relevant
to ECL., These controls, among others, inchuded controls over the allocation of assets into
stages including management’s monitoring of stage elfectiveness, model monitoring
including the need for post model adjustments, model validation, credit monitoring,
individual/collective provisions and production of journal entries and disclosures. We tested
the completeness of loans included in the Expected Credit Loss caleulations as of 31 March
2024, We tested assets in stage 1, 2 and 3 on sample basis 1o verify that they were allocated
to the appropriate stage. For samples of exposure, we tested the appropriateness of
determining Exposure at Default (EAD), PD and LGD. We performed an overall assessment
of the ECL provision levels at each stage including management’s assessment on Covid-19
impact 1o determine if they were reasonable considering the Company’s portfolio, risk
profile, credit risk management practices and the macrocconomic environment. We assessed
the adequacy and appropriate.

We assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of disclosures in compliance with the Ind AS

107 in relation to ECL especially in relation to judgements used in estimation of ECL
Provision.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Company™s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information, The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include
the standalone {inancial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Owur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is
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materially inconzsistent with the standalone Tinancial statements, or our knowledge oblamed in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information included in the above reports, it we conclude that there
is material misstatement thergin, we are required to communicate the matier to those charged
with governance and determine the actions under the applicable laws and regulations. We
have nothing to report in this regard for the previous financial year.

Management's Responsibility for the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position and financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
company in accordance with Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liguidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do 50,

The board of directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
Process,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also.

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
1o provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstalement
resuliing from fraud 15 lgher than for one resulting from emor, a5 fraud may involve
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collusion, Torgery, intentional omussions, musrepresentations, or the overnide of
internal control.

=  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3%i) of
the Companies Act 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial control with reference to
standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of the such
controls,

=  CEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management™s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the andit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on company’s
ability to continue as going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors” report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions ol a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be mfluenced. We consider
gquantitative materiality and gqualitative factors in

(1} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work:; and

(1) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial
statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our andit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determing those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for
the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matier should
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nol be commumcated i our reporl because the adverse consequences of domg so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1y As required by Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020, issued by the Government of
Indhia in terms of sub-section 11 of section 143 of the Companmies Act 2013 we give in the
Annexure- A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
order.

2y As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by ihe
company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢} The Balance Sheet, The Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, Statement of changes in Eguity and Statement of cash fow dealt with by this
report are i agreeiment with the books of account,

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standard)y Rules, 2005 as amended including the companics
(Indian Accounting Standards) amendment rules, 2019,

e} On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disgqualificd as on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 16402 of the Act.

)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the company in reference 1o the financial statements and the operating effectivencss
of such controls, refer our separate report in “Annexure- B™.

g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act. as amended., in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the vear is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies { Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
tor the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i} The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial

position in its financials.

i) The company did not have any long-term contract including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iiiy There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the company.

i¥} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts,
{a) no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or Kind of funds) by the company to
or in any other person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ‘Intermediaries’,
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
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1)

for Ayyar & Cherian
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0002848

Dijo Philip Mathew
Membership No. 224930
Place: Emakulam

Date: 28-05-2024

UDIN: 24224930BKACUID5ES

Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
‘Ultimate Beneficiaries “or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(b) no funds have been received by the company trom any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ‘Funding Parties’, with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party *Ultimate Beneficiaries’ or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(c) Based on audit procedures carried out by us, that we have considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b)
contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividends during the vear and accordingly
reporting on the compliance with section 123 of the companies Act,2013 is not
applicable for the FY 2023-24,

Based on our examination which included test check, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and same has operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
Audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.
As Provision to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 is applicable from
April 1. 2024, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules,2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirement for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31,2024,
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1)

2)

4)

6)

7)

"Annexure A7 to the Independent Auditors™ Report

Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the company on the standalone
financial statements for the vear ended 31% March 2024,

{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment & Intangible assets.

{b) According to the information and explanation given to me, all the fixed assets were physically
verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a regular program of]
verification which, in my opinion, provides for physical verification of the fixed assets at
reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation given to me, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

{c) The title deeds of all the immovabhle properties {other than property where the company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the
financial statements are held in the name of the company:,

(d) According to the information and explanations give to me, the company has not revalued its
Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right of Use Assets) or mtangible assets or both
during the year.

{g) According to the information and explanation given to me, no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (435 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company ("NBFC') and is in the business providing
financial services and does not have any inventories. Accordingly, the Clause 3(ii) of the Order
not applicable to the Company.

As explained to us, the company has not made investments in nor provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of the Act,
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (¢} of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act i respect of loans granted,
investments made and guarantees given, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits during the year which attract the directives issued by the FReserve Bank of India. Being a
Mon-Banking Finance Company registered with Reserve Bank of India, the provisions of]
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules framed there under
regarding acceptance of deposits are not applicable. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

In our opinien and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central
Government has not prescribed the mamtenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act
for the Company.

{a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax and other material statutory dues

applicable to it with the appropriate authorities,
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=)

)

10}

11)

14)

15)

16)

17}

(b} There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect ol Provident Fund, Income Tax,
Goods and Service Tax and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company does not have any such
transactions that are not recorded in the books of accounts that have been surendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to
any lender during the year,

ia) In our opinion and according to the mformation and explanations given to us, the Company
has raised monies by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the vear, which were applied for the purposes for which those are raised.

(B) 1) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has made private placement of sccured unlisted redeemable non-convertible debentures (the
“debentures issue”™) during the year and Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, have been
complied with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were
raised,

ii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has made preferential allotment of shares during the year and requirements of Section 62 ol
the Companies Act, 20013 have been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the
purposes for which the funds were raised.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the vear.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 {xii)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

It our opition and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company is
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with
related parties and the details of the related parly transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

a) The company has an imternal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

b} The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under andit were considered during the
audit.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not entered any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 {xv) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company and hence nol commented upon,

a). The Company is registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

b). The Company is registered as Non-Deposit Accepting Mon-Banking Financial Company from
the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

¢).  The company is not a Core Investment Company (C1C) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India, therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xvidie) of the Order is not
applicable 1o the Company,

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, The company has incured a cash loss of Bs 64,55 and 6.93 (Rs. in lakhs) in the

s
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finaneial year and in the immediately preceding financial year respectively.

18) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the vear.

193 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board ol
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us (o believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liahilities existing at the date of Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
vear from the Balance Sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of]
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due,

200 {a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, in respect of other than ongeing projects, the Company has not transferred unspent
amount 0 a Fund specified in Schedule VI to the Companies Act within a period of six months
of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section
135 of the said Act,

i{b) No such remaining unspent amount under sub-section (3) of section 135 of the Companies
Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, has been transferred to special account in compliance with
the provision of sub-section {(6) of section 135 of the said Act.

20 In our opinion consolidated financial statement is not applicable for the company. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3 (xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Ayyar & Cherian
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, 0002845

Dijo Philip Mathew
Membership No. 224930

Place: Ernakulam

Drate: 28-05-2024

LDIN: 24224930BKACUI9588
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FAnnexure BT to the Tndependent Auditor™s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-scetion 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have andited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ST Capital & Financial Services
Linuted (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in comjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting eriteria established by the Company considering the
cssential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“1CAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduet of its business,
including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding ol its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

COar responsibility 15 1o express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of]
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, ssued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of nternal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting were established and maintained and il such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Cur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
inancial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
linancial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating elfectiveness ol internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records thal, in reasonable detail, aceurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of]
financizl statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the Company: and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 1o error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of]
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the company maintained in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Ciuidance MNote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting i1ssued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Ayyar & Cherian
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 0002845

Dijo Philip Mathew
Membership No. 224930

Place: Ernakulam

Date: 28-05-2024

UDIN; 24224930BKACUT9588
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5.1, Capital & Financial Services Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
(All armounts are in lakhs of Indian Bupess, unless atherwise stated)

As at As at
s i 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
I ASSETS
1 Financial assets
a)  Cash and cash equivalents 9 61.12 45,65
b} Loans 0 b 510.28
c}  Investments 11 [L¥.17 0.03
d)  Mher financial assets 12 8.45 11.68
2 Hon-financial assets
4} Current tax assets (net)h 13 203 0,68
B} Deferred tax asets (net) 315 &.Th E.TH
t} Property, plant and Equipment 14 13.79 9.36
dj  Other intangible assets 15 5.61 5.85
2} Qther non-financial assets 16 11.13 B.2%
Total assets 1,019.32 598.58
Il LIABILITIES AND ECANTY
LIABILITIES
1 Financial liabilities
a)  [PFayables
(1} Trade payables 17
(i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and - -
small enterprises
[i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 9.7 7.4
micro enterprises and small enterprises
by Other Payables
(i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises
by  Debt securities 18 430,36 108,10
c}  Barrowings {other than debt securities) 1% 151.31 15,17
d)  Subordinated Liabilities Flil 58.06 o7.68
®)  (ther financial liabilities F}| 24.54 15.32
2 Hon-financial Liabilities
a)  Provisions 12 5.82 4,30
B}  Cther non-financial liabilities 11 ER| 1.17
71337 269,18
EQUITY
a)  Equity share capital 24 160,00 340,00
B} Gther equity 15 {64.04) (23.10)
£} Money received against share warrants (Rel Hobe, 18) - 12.50
Total liabilities and equity 1,019.32 598.58

Sea accompanying notes farming part of the standalone financial statements.

In terms of our report attached.
For Ayyar & Cherian

Chartered Accountants
FRHE:O00Z845

Dijo Philip Mathew

Parirer

Membership Mo, 224930
LM 232 34930BGT MW k040

Place: Ernakulam

| Dl 28-05-2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sreeram Gopinathan Mair
Managing Director
DI 05143385

Sujith K Ravindranath
Company Secretary
Membership Mo, :AI9T57

Place: Thrissur
Date: J8-05-2074

T. B. Ramakrishnan
Director
DiIM: 01601072

Ajeesh .4
Chief Financial Officer
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EI. Capiial & Financial Services Limited
Standalone Statement of Frofit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
|4l ameunts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
Year ended Year ended
5. Particulars H
e . s B 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
i Revenue from operations
i} Interest income 26 (i 161.37 B2.33
(i} Dividend Income 26 i) - o1
[Hiy Met gain on fair value changes 26 (i) - 0.0%
fv) Sake of services 8 [iv) 11,41 B4
Tatal Revenus from aperations {1} LEF N 91,43
iy Cther income 7 3.75 21,29
iy Total income {1 1} 176,53 112,72
Expenses
i} Finance costs i) 49,55 12,48
(i} Fees and commission experse % 10.86 303
Iy Impairment on financial fmstruments L1 2136 {1,270
fiv] Employes benefits expenses 1 B H4 795
(V] Depreciation and amortisation 2 s 1.80
[wi] Other sxperses il TL&B 6746
[0y Tatal expenses (IV) 148,12 122,45
¥y Profitf{Loss) before expeeptional ftems and tax {0 - 1Y) {71.5B8) 19.73}
VI Exceptional items - -
L] Prodit/{Less) before tax (11 - V) {71.58) {9.73}
i Tax expanse: 4
1) Current tax - -
71 Deferred tax . .
i) Profitf{Loss) for the year (W - V1) {71.58) {9.73)
(4] Other comprehensive income -
A} (ip ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or los - -
(i) Income tax relating o items that will nat be reclasilied Lo - -
profit ar loss
Subkatal (&) - -
B) i8p 1tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
i) Income tax relating to items that will b2 reclassified to profit - "
of Loss
Subtatal (B) - -
Qther comprehendive income (& + B) - -
LAY Tatal comprehensive income for the year (VI + V1) {71.58) 1973}
GEIE) Earnings per eguity share 36
Basic (Rs.) (1.5 29y
Drluted (Rs.) (1.5%) (028
Seg accomganying notes forming part of the standalone financial statements.
In terms of our regort attached.
Far ayyar & Cherlan For and on behalf of the Baard of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRH:O0OZRES
Dijo Philip Mathew Sresram Gopinathan Mair T. B. Ramakrishnan
Partier Managing Drectar Director
Membership Mo, 224930 DIM: 95143385 DI 150072
LIDIM: T 3245 3060 THW 4040
Sufith K Ravindranath Ajeesh KA
Company Secrelary Chiel Financial OMMicer
Mombership Mo, ATSFET
Place; Emakulam Place; Thrissur
Diabe: 2805 1124 Date: J8-05 M174
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5.1 Capital & Financial Services Limited
Cash flow statement for the Year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless atherwise stated)

Particulars

For the Year ended
31 March 2024

For the Year ended
31 March 2023

A Cash flow from operating activities
Met profit / (Loss) before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense
Impairment an financial instruments
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Profit on redemption of Mutual Funds
Profit on sale of Shares
Dividend Received
Forfeiture of Share warrants
Interest income from banks, investments and athers
Unrealised gain on investment

Operating Profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital and loans:
Decrease / (increase) in non-financlal assets
Decrease S (increase) in loans
Decrease [/ (increase) in other financial assets
Increase [ (decrease) in trade payables
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase S (decrease) in provisions
Increase  (decrease) in other non-financial liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Bank Charges
Met income tax (paid)
Met cash flows from/{used in) operating activities (A}

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital expenditure, including capital advances
Proceads from sale of proparty, plant and equipment
Furchase of property, plantand Equipment
{Purchase) / Sale of investments
Profit on sale of Shares
Profit on sale of Shares
Interest received
Dividend Received
Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents
Het cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (B)

-71.58 -9.73
7.02 2.80
23.36 (1.27)
- (0.05)
- 0.11)
. (20.10)
41.21) (28,46)
-2.84 {062}
472 85 (258_84)
3.71 (9.72)
.51 4,34
-0.75 23.28
1.52 0.15
21.34 0.48
{416.84) (240.94)
{458.05) {269.39)
-1.35 -0.57
{459.40) (269.96)
(11.21) (8.20)
(0.63) 32.52
- 0.11
(11.84) 24.43
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5.1 Capital & Financial Services Limited

Cash flow statement for the Year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless atherwise stated)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings from others 126.14 2517
Proceads from issue of share capital 50.00 100.00
Proceeds from issue of non convertible debentures 38216 108.10
Proceeds from Shares 0.63 0.00
Subordinated liabilities 0.18 0.40
Proceeds from money received against share warrants (12.50) 12.50
Met cash flow from financing activities (C) 486.71 24617
Met increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A 15.47 0.64
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 43.65 43.02
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year 61.12 45.65

In terms of our report attached.
For Ayyar & Cherian
Chartered Accountants

FRM: 0002845

Dijo Philip Mathew

Partner

Membership Mo 224930
UDIM: 2322493080 THW 14040

PMlace: Ernakulam
Date: 28-05-2024

Sreeram Gopinathan Nair
Managing Director
DIM: 05143385

Sujith K Ravindranath
Company Secretary
Membership No,:A39757

Place: Thrissur
Date: 28-05-2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

T. B, Ramakrishinan
Director
DIM: 01601072

Ajeesh KA
Chief Financial Officer
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5.1, Capital & Financial Services Limited
Rotes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1 Corporate Information
%.).Capital & Financial Services Limited ("the Compary”} was incorporated on Movember B, 1994 at Chennai, Tamil Hadu. The Company is a
Han-Sytemically Impartant Mon-Deposit Taking Hon Banking Financial Company and a Full Fledged Money Changer. The Company has been
providing fund based and fee based services. The equity shares of the Company are Llisted on the BSE Limited. The Company i5 registered
with the Reserve Bank of Incia (REl). The registration details are as follows:
1. NBFC License Mo, = 0700078
I. FFMC License Mo, - CHE-FFMC-0125-2023 kN
Identity Mumber (CIN) @ L67190TZ 1950 4PLCO40490
Thees Coanpany 18 the Subsidiary company of the Sharewealth Securities Limited.

¢ Basis of preparation
The fimancial statements have been prepared as a going concern in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard ('Ind A5"), notified
wnder section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 read together with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies (Indian Accounting 5tandards) amendments Rules, 2016 tsswed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCaA). The Comparny has
adopted Ind AS from April 1, 20119 with effective transition date as April 1, 2018
The preparation of financial statements requires the wse of certain critical scoounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reparbed
amounts of aseld, Habilitkss, revenied and expenies and the diacloted amount of contingent liabilities, Aread jnvolving a higher degree af
judgerment or comglexity, or arcas whore assumptions are significant to the Company are discussed in Bote & - Significant accounting
judgements, estimates and asswmptions.
The financlal statements are presented in Indian Rupees (IHR) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise
indicated.

3 Presentation of financial statement
The fimancial stabements of the Compamy are presented as per Schedule Il (Division |l of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to HBFCs, as
notified (as amended) by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported on a grosg
basis except when, there is an unconditional legally enforceable rght to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future
event and the parties intend to settle on a net basis in the Tollowing ciroumstances:
i. The norrmal course af business
ii. The event of default
iti. The event of insolvency or bankrupbcy of the Company and/ or its counterparties.

4 Satement of compliance
These separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 a5 amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Lhe
generally accepted accounting principles as referred to in paragraph 1 "Basis of Preparation” above,
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5.1, Capital B Financial Services Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

5 Significant accounting policies

5.1 Financial instruments
(I} Classification of financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost
1. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive incame
3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets” cash flows and the Company's business model for managing
financial assets.

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to acheve its business
objective, The business model s assessed on the basts of aggregated portfolios based on observable factors, These factors include:

» Reports reviewed by the entity’s key management persannel on the performance of the financial assets

¥ The risks impacting the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model] and its management
thereof
¥ The compensation of the managing teams (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on
the contractual cash flows collected)

» The expected frequency, value and timing of trades.

The business model assessment 15 based on reasonably expected scenarios without t.alung_ 'wiorst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios into account.

The Company also asesses the contractual terms of financial assets on the basis of its contractual cash flow characteristics that are solel
fior the payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

‘Principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for
example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium Sdiscounth,

In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e,
interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistend
with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basig
lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through prafit or less.

The Company classifies its Tinancial liabilities at amortised costs unless it has designated Wabilities at fair walue through the profit and Iosg
atoount or i required to measure liabilities at fair value throwgh profit or loss such as derfvative liabilities,

(i} Financial assels measured at amortised cost

These Financial assets cormprise bank balances, Loans and other financial assets.

Financial Assets with contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, and represent solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding; and are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding to collect
contractual cash flows are measured at amartised cost.
These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable tramsaction costs and subsequently measured af
amortised cost. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, tssue or disposal of a financial assed
or & financial labilicy.

iii) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
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5.1 Capital & Financial Services Limited
Hotes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Items at fair value through profit or loss comprise:

» Inwestment in equity shares held for trading;

= Items specifically designated as fair value throwgh profit or Loss on initial recognition; and

= debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent salely payments of principal and interest.

Financial instruments hedd at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, with transaction costs recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value and any gains or losses are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as they arise.

Financial instruments heldd for trading

A financial instrument Is classified as held for trading if it & acquired or incurred principally for selling or repurchasing in the near term, ar
forms part of & portfolie of financial instruments that are maneged together and for which there is evidence of short-verm profit taking, or
it 1 & derivative not designated in & qualifying hedge relationship,

Trading derivatives and trading securiticos are ctlassified as held for trading and recognised at fair value.

iv) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After inilial measeement, deb issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently messured al amarbised cost, amortised cost s calsulated
by Laking inlo account any discount or premivm on fssue funds, and transaction cosls thal are an integral part of the Effeclive Inlerest Rate
[EIR}.
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{¥) Recognition and derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

& financial asset or financial liability & recognsed in the balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument, which is generally on trade date. Loans ard recewables are recognised when cash is advanced (or settled) to the borrowers,
Financial assels sl fair value through prafit or less are recognited initially sl fair value. Al other firancial ssals are recognised imitially al
tair value plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company derecognises & financial aiset when the contractusl cash flows from the asset expire or it transfers its rights to receive
contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred.
Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company s recognised as a scparate asset or liakbility, &
financial liability is derecognised from the balance sheel when the Company has discharged its obligation or the contracl is cancelled or
axpires,

{vi) Impairment of financial assels

The Corvgeary recognised impairment allowance lor expected credil 1084 on Nnancial asdels held at amort ised codt,

The Company recegnises lois allowances [provisians) for expected credit losses on its financial assets (including non-fund expodures) that are
measured at amortised costs or at fair value through other comprehenstve income account.
The Company applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECLs) for the Loan assets that are not measured at fair
walue through profit or loss. No ECL & recognised on equity investments. Financial ssiets migrate through the following three stages based
on the change in credit sk since initial recognition:

1: 13 -mon ECI
For expasures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are not credit impaired upon
origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events osccurring within the next 12 months is
recegnised.
Stage 3: Lidetime ECL - not credit impaired
For exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since inftial recognition but are not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL
[i.e. reflecting the remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is recognised,
Stage 30 Lidetirne ECL - credit impaired
Exposwres are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that asset have occurred, For expasures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL i recognised and interest revenue is caloulated
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost {net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

Determining the stage for impairment

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial
recogrition by comparing the risk of default accurring over the expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.
The Company censiders reasanable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort for this purpose.
This inclisdes quantitative and qualitative information ard also, farward-looking analysis.,

An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages & assel qualily deteriarates, If, in a subsequeent period, asset guality impraves and also
reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit rsk since origination, then the loss allowances reverts from Uifetime ECL to 12-
maonths ECL,

The loss allowances Tor Uhese linancial assels & based on a 12-manths ECL.

‘when an asset 15 uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance. Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures
have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined, Subseguent recoverios of amaounts previowsly written off reduce the
amaunt af the sllowances in the profit snd loss statement.

The Company assesses whether the credit risk on an expasure has increased significantly on an individual or collective basis. For the
purpases of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial instruments are grouped on the basis of shared oredit risk characteristics, taking
into account imstrument type, credil risk ratings, date of inilial recognilion, remaining Lerm Lo maturily, mdustry, geographical location af
the borrower and other relevant factors.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighled estimates of expected loss, and are measured as fallows:

« Fimanclal assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present valwe of all cash shortfalls over the expected Lite of the
financial asset discounted by the effective interest rate. The cash shartfall is the difference between the cash flows due to the Campany in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, The Company has grauped its various financial asets
in to pools containing loans bearing homogeneouws risks characteristics. The probability of default for the pools are computed based on the
historical trends, adjusted for any forward looking factors, Similarly the Company computes the Loss Given Default based on the recovery
rates.

« Financlal assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross camying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted by the effective interest rate.
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5.T. Capilal & Financial Sevvices Limied
Notes Lo Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Callateral Valuation

Ta mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where passible. The collateral caomes in various farms,
such a5 movable and immovable assets, uarantess, , otc, Howaver, the fair value of collateral affiects the calculation of ECLs. To the
extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valumg financial assets held as collateral. Dther financlal assets which do ot have
readily deterrminable macket valies are valued wslng models. Hon-Tinancial collateral, such as velicles, Is valued based an data provided by
third parties ar management judgements.

Lollateral repossessed

In its normal Course of business whenever default oocurs, the Company may [ake possession of properthes of other assets In s retail
partfolic and generally dispedes such sisets throwgh auction, o delble aulitanding debl. Any serplus funds are returnesd Lo Lhe
cistomers/obligars. 4s a rosult of this practice, assets under legal repossession processes are ot recorded on the balance sheot.

5.1, Capital & Financial Services Limited
Hotes to Standalone Financial Statemnents for the year ended 31 March 20324

{wiiy Write-offs

The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financlal asset when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recowvering a
financlal asget in i entirety or a portion thereal. This is generally the caie when the Company determines that the borrower does not have
amets or sauwrces of income that could generste sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any subseguent
recoveriaes againss sich loans are credited to the statement of profit and Loss

{wiil} Determination of fair value
Fair value 5 the price that would be received to sell an asset or paig to transfer a liability in an orderly trarsaction between market
The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting periad during which the change has

5.2 Revenue from operatkons

P

{i} Interest Income
Interest income 15 recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carmying amaunt of financial assets ather than credit-
Impaired assets and financial assets classified as measured at FYTRL,

The EIR incase of a financial asset is computed

a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross camying
amount of a financial asset.

b, By carsidering all the contractual terms af the financial instrument in astimating the cash flows

. Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and
all ather premiums or discounts,

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash Mows & recognised ininterest income with the correspanding adjustment ta the
carrying amount af the assets.

(iip Dividend Income
Dividend income 5 recognised
a. When the right Lo receive the payment s established,
b, 1t 75 probable that the scaonamic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and
c. the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably,

iwip Fees B Commission Income
Fers and commissians are recognised when the Company satisfies the performance obligatsan, st fair valee of the consideration received or
Processing fee which s not form part of effective interest rate has been recognised as and when it accrues.

{lv} Met galn on Fair value changes

any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or loss, held by the Company on the
balance sheet date B recognised ad an unrealised gain o lods, In cases there B a net gain in the aggregate, the same & recognised in “Het
gaing on fair value changes™ under Revenue fram operations and if there 5 a net loss the same & disclosed under "Experdges”™ in the
statement of Profit and Loss.

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FYTPL and debt instruments measured at FVOL] is recognised
In et gain £ loss on fair value charges. As at the reporting date the Company does not have any financlal Instruments measured at FYTPL
and dabt irdtiuments measured at FVOCL

However, net gain / loss on devecagnition of fnancial instruments classified as amortised cost is presented separately under the respective
hezad in the 3tatement of Protit and Loss.

5,1 Expenses

(i} Finance costs
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Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Finance costs represents Interest expense recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financia
iabflities other than financial liabilities classified as FYTPL,

The EIR in case of a financial hability is computed

B, As Lhe rake thal Exm’ll':.l discounts estirmaled future cash payments throasgh the expecied life ol the financial liakility Lo U gross CRrmying
pmount of the amortised cost of a financial liability.

b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows

£, Including all fees pald between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and al
pther premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income with the corresponding adjustment to the
rarrying amount of the assets.

nterest expense includes issue costs that ane initially recognized as part of the carrying walue of the financial liability and amortized over
the expected life using the effective interest method. These include fees and commissions payable to advisers and other expenses such as
e rmal |-f-g.a| casts, Rating Fee etc, provided these are incremental codts that are dire Ilg related (o the e af & Ninpncial |I.:|I|'|Iil:g.
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5.1, Capiial & Financial Services imiied
Hotes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March Z0Z4

(i) Retirement and other employes banefits
Short term emplayes benefit
&ll employee benefits payable wholly within twalve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term emoloyee benefits. Thase
benefits mclude short term compensated absences such as pald annual keave, The undiscourted amount of short-term amployes benefits
expected o be paid in exchange for the serdces rendered by employees [s recognised as an experde during the period. Benefits such as
salaries and wages, etc. and the expected cost af the bamnusfex-gratia are recogrised in the pericd in which the employes renders the
related service,

Post-employment employee benefits

a} Defined cantribution schemses

All the employees of the Company are entitled to recerve benefits under the Provident Fund and Emaloyees State Insurance schema, defined
contribution plans in which both the employee and the Company contrioute monthly at a stipulated rate. The Company has no labdity for
future benefits ather than its annual contribution and recognises such contributions as an expense in the perfad in which employee renders
the related service. |f the cantribution payable to the scheme far service received before the Balance Sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid, If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services recelved before the Balance Sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset o the
extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in Tutere payment ar a cash refund,

b Defned Benefit schemes

The Compary provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employess. The plan provides for lump sum payments
o employess upon death while in employment or on separation Trom employment after serving for the stipulated years mentioned under
‘The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972".

{iid) Other income and expenses
ALl Other income ang expense are recognized in the period they acour,

{iv) Impatrment of non-financial assets

The cArrying amaount af assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal /external
factors, An Erpairment loss i recognized wherever the carrying amownt of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amaunt i the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In assedsing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted ta their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments af the time value of momey and
risks specific to the asset.

In determining net selling price, recent markel Uransactions are taken into account, il availlable. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model s used. After impairment, depreciation 5 provided on the revised carryicg amount of the asset over it
ramaining wseful life,

v) Tawas
Current Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities far the curmenrt and prior years are measurad atb the amount axpected to be recoverad fram, of paid ta, tha
taxalion suthorities. The Lax rates and tax Laws used Lo compule the amownl are those thal are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the
reparting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates tacable income,
Current ‘ncome tax relating to items recognised cutside profit or loss 5 recognised awtside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
mcome or in equityh. Current tax items are recagnised in correlation to the ul"ﬂl':"l'l'p’il'llg transaction either n OC) or directly in equity.
Management periodically evalualed paiitiong Laken in the Las reluras wilh réspect Lo situbtiond in which applicable thx regulations are
sibject ta interpretatian and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Defered Lax assels and liabilitkes are recognised lor temporary differences arsing betwesn the Lax bases of assels and liabilities and their
carrying amounts, Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that bave been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reparting date and are cxpected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realiser or the deferred income tax liahility is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are anly recognised for temporary differences, unused tax losses and nused tax credits if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will arise to vtilise those temporary differences and losses, Deferred tax assets are roviewed at each reporting date and
are reduced to the extent that 1t is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsst where there i a legally snforceable right to offest current tax assets and liabilities and they
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle
current tax (kabilities and assets on a net basis or thedr tax assets and Liabilities are realised simultaneously.
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Minimurn Allernabe Tax (MAT

Miimum alternate tax (MAT) paid 0 & year is charged to the statemnent of prafit and lass as current tax. The Company recognies MAT
credit available as an asiet anly to the extent that it is probable that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period,
i, the perfod for which MAT credil is allowed Lo be carrfed forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an assel in
accordance with the Guidance Mote on Accounting for Credil Available in respect of Minimum &lternative Tax under the Income-Lax Act,
1961, the said asset s created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlernent.” The Comparny
reviews Lhee MAT Credit Entitlement assel al sach repocting date and writes down the assel Lo the extent the Comparny does nol have
canvincing avidenoe that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Goods and services tax fvalue added taxes pasd an acquisition of assets or an incurring expendes

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the goods and servioes Lax/value sdded Laxes paid, excepl:

i. When the tax incurred on 8 purchase of aisets ar services i not recoverable fmom the Laxation autharity, in which cass, the Lax paid &
recognied as parl of L cost of acquisition of Lhe asiel or a8 partl of the experse item, as applicable

il. When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount. of tax recoverable from, ar payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance
shest,

5.4 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise Lhe net amownt of short-tenm, highly liguid investments that are readily converLible o krown amounts
afl cash {short-lerm degodits with an original maturity of Uhree months ar less) and ane subject o an insfgnificant risk of change in valee,
chieques on hand aid balances with banks, They are held for the puracses of meeting shorl-Lerm cash commilmentd {rather than far
investment ar ather purpases).

Cash Flows are reparted wing the ndirect method whereby cash flows Trom operating, nvesling and financirg activities of the Group ane
segregated and profit before tax @ adjusbed Tar the effects of transactions of non - cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past ar
Tuture cash receipls of payments.,

5.5 Progerty, Plant and equigment [PPE)

Property, plant and equipment (PFE) are measured at cost less accumaulated deprectation and accumulated impairment, {f any). The notal
cost of assets comprises its purchase price, fredght, duties, taxes and any other incldental expenses directly attributable to bringing the
assel Lo the location and condition necessary for it Lo be capable of operaling in the manner intended by the management, Changes in Lhe
expected wseful Life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in
accounting estimates

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only 1 o increases the future benefits of the
existing asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably, Other repairs and maintenance
casts are expersed off as and when incurred,

Dapreciation 15 calculated wsing the Written Down Yalue Method (WD) in accordance with the usatul life prescribed is Schadule | to the
Comganies Act, 2013 ta write down the cost of property and equipmant o their ressdual values over their estimated useful lives, Land is not.
depreciated,

Ther estimiabed useful lives ane, as follows:

Useful life
Particulars. astimated by
Company
Computers and gata processing un'ts
- Enduser dewices -Desktops, Laptops 3 years
Furniture ard Tittings
- General 10 years
Qffice equipment 5 years

The residual walues, useful Uves and metheds of depreciation of property, plant and eguipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, il appropriate,

Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use, Any gain o Loss
arlsing on derecognition of the assel {calculated as the differemce Detween the net dispesal proceeds and the carmying amount of the asset)
ts recopnised im other income [ experse in the statement of orofIt and Loss in the year the asset & derecopnised. The date of disposal of an
itern of property, plant and equipment is the date the recipent obtains control of that item in accordance with the requirements for
determining when 8 performance aoligation 1s satisfied in ind A5 115
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5.6 Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised oy when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic benefit
that are attributable to it will flow to the Company.
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase pricy
and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accurmulated amortisation and any accumulated impairmen
laspes,

The useful lives of intangible assels are asesied to be either finite or indefinile, Intangible assets with finite lives are amartised over the
wgeful ecanomic lile, The amartiEstion periad and the amortisation method for an intangible st with 8 Tinite usefol liTe are reviewsd &
lesast at each lmancial year-end, Changes in the expected uield lite, or the expecled pattem of cansurmplion of huture economic benedit
embodied in the astet, are accounted Tor by changing the amortisation period or methodelogy, a5 sppropriate, which are then treated s
changed in accaunting estimates. The amortisation experde on intangible assets with Tinite ives is presented as a separate line item in the
atatement of proflit and lods. AmartEation an assets acquiredfold during the year is recognited on a pro-rata basis to the Statarment o
Frofit and Loss Tram & upto the date of acquisition/sale.

Amartication & calculated usirg the straight-line method (o write down the cost of intangible asets to their residual values over thed
estimated uselul Lives. Intangible assets camprising of software are amortised an a straight-ling basis over a period of 6 years, unless it has 4
sharter usetul life.

The Cormpany's intangible assets consist of computer software with definite life.

Gains or losses from derecognition of Intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net dispesal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asget are recagnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset & derecognised.

5.

=l

Provisions

Pravisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or comstructive) as a result of past events, and it & probabls
that an sutflow of resources embadying econamic benefits will be required ta settle the obligation, and a rellable estimate can be made o
the armount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the enterprise determines the level of provision by discounting the expected cash
flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific te the Uability. The expense relating to any proviston 1 presented in the
statement of profit and loss et of any reimbursement.

5.8 Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liabdlily is a possible obligation that arises fraom past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non
occurrence of one or more uncertain futwre events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that s nol recognized
becmse it s not probable that an outflow of resources will be reguired to settle the obligation. A contingent liability alse arises i
extremely rare cawes where there 5 a liability that cannot be recopnized becauts it cannot be meaared reliably. The Company doss no
recaogrize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

5.9 Earnings Per Share
The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind &5 33 on Earnings per share. Basic EFS is caloulated by
diwiding the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders {after attributable taxes) by the weighted average number o
equity shares outstanding during the year.,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earmings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential eguity shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been fssued at a later date. In computing
the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per share or increasas los
per share are included,

5.10 Segment Reporting

Dperating segments are reported in a manner consistant with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODRM),
The Board of Directors (BOD) of the Company assesses the financial performance and position of the Company, and makes strategis
decisions. The BOD, which has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker, The Company is ergaged in the business of i
Lending finance ard §i) Fees & commission income, The said business are aggregated for the purpose of review of performance by CODM
Accordingly, the Company has concluded that the business of lending finance and foes & commission income to be the only reportably
segment,
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Ind A5 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or
terminate the lease, i the wse of such option is reasonably certain, The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a
lease-by-leaie hasii and thevely adsesses whether il & reasonably cerlain thal any oplions o exléend o lenminale Uhe conlract will e
exercised, In evaluating the lease term, the Campany considers Factors such as amy signilicant leasehold improvernents underteken aver Lhe
lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the impartance of the underlying asset to Company's operations taking inta
account the location of the underlying asset and the avalability of suitable altematives. The lease term in future perlods is reassessed oo
ansure that the Lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. Since all leases of the Company is for a term less than 12 months
single lessee accounting model under Ind AS 116 is not applicable,

f Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in confarmity with the Ind A5 regquires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongaing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the perisd in which the estimates are revised and fubwe periods are affected
Althowgh [hese eslimates are based on Lhe management’s besl knowledae of current events and aclion, uncertainly abaul Chese
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes reguiring a material adjustment b the carmying amounts of assets or liabilities in
future periods.

7 Impairment of loans portfolio

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assels requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of Uhe
amoant and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significany
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

It has been the Company’s policy 1o regularly review its models in the context of scrual loss experience and adjust when necessary.

The impairment loss on loans and advances is disclosed in more detail in Hote 5,1 (vi) Overview of ECL principles.
In case, higher provisions are to be considered as per the prudential norms of the Reserve Bank of India, they are considered.

8 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Company’s EIR methodolegy, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of retwrn that represents the best estimate of a constany
rate of return over the expected behavioural Life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates af
wariows stages and other characteriatics of the product lile cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges),

This estimation, by nature, reguires an element of judgement regarding the expected behavdiour and life-cycle of the instruments, as wel

expected changes to India's base rate and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

§.l. Capital & Financial Services Limited

Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(AL amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 9: Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash on hand 18.97 16.76
Balances with Banks in current accounts
- In current accounts 42.14 29.39
61.12 45.65
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5.1, Capital B Financisl Services Limited
Motes Lo Sandal Fimancial 54al s Tor the year ended 319 March 2034
Jsll amounts are In lakhs of Indlan Fupees, unless otheratse stabed)
Mobe 11; Inemstmants
As ar 31 arch 2004 Az an Fist March 202T
AEF v AL Fair
Fartlculars n.m;-;::uu l:’iuu P, Tk am;:n:.:-d u':'rimu;l Ohers Total
profit or Lo prodit ar Loss
1) Equity instruments In others
284 Eguity sharcs o R 1855 caeh fully pald s Qalrda Brorar Refracteries ; gz ; .
Limieed ’ B s : B
i Th i &
;I::l Eouity shares af Rs. 107~ cach Tully pa¥d in Thambbi Modern Sofnsing Ylls e 0.0 nat o0
00 Equity shares of R 00 each fully pald in Ganapathy Ml Lud [0 - B.0% nog [ r]
Tabal Grodis (A - [R5 - ek = D.0¥ 0.0%
1 Irrecstimenils ouskde Inda - - = - b - B -
il bivvrvtimeents i india [ 1] .66 1K) 003
Total Groas @) - R - A b - 0.0 0.0%
Lidis @ Alloweancs (o o palr iss il Do O] " " " - - - - -
Tatal - Het J0) = &} ik - LR - .Gk - 0,08 - 0.08
Irreirsbirean? divigeated ol PATPL b a portfalio ol esulty inbrumenls, Equity imtrusents hase bein clasifed ot Fak value theauih prent and Lo 5 noe cinh Tews fros equity inlraminls does sol
represent sobely payment of princpal and nbenest.
During thea FY 200333 & 302124, Cortais isveifrmests s manliosed Dok & recomed as Prior perod erer due b onesions rom, and @iksiale mests (5 the milys linascel slatesents of
arliest prioe periods s per paragraph 43 subjgect Lo paragraph £3 of Ind s B Accouniing Polkckes changes s Accounting Estimabes ard Errors.As per the seid standaed, the ety shall comect ma e ol
proe perigd mmor retrepectively amep o the extent thet # 1 imprcbcsble to determine efther the penod -sp=oific efiecty o the cumualative efiect of the ermr in the Tt st of fimgacipl
alalarenili mproeed Tor haue alter 1R dudoseiy By
(alresiating the comparabive amounis far the pricr peniodish presented in which the ermor cooumed; or
ikl the eirer o cusined before e aadliis prind pericd presin Led setating te opening halanoe of et Sabilive and ageity for the aarlei? prior panod jneseatied
During the disencial yesr 1021-15 § 12514, shile yrdeveoing the rocecires. and procesaes in the shifting of reghtered oifice of the tompary from the ursdiction of Bod-Cre=nai to Aol -Coimzaints
the costparry dscovared shpsical thare cerlifcalss of some arsmbmenls mada |n T pash Those shares wene devnalenal sed and brougin oo te demal sccoanl of Uhe compars, TRe emrors of e s
perids mere restabed recrospecti vely by restaring the opering balance of (reestment -Hote no. 1) and conrespondingly in Bhe cpening balsace of Other Equiby (Hote Ma. 25
3 07374 07331
Particiilars = Code
i Hm, Pabs ke He, Rair el lu
Drodinila Efarat Relracionics Lisined FEQERMANLD 2 18540 083 .
The 5 Garesperiiry Wills comppny Lbd FEASEFILOLE EH] Y- 0.3 430 ET [T
Thearhibsi Meders Spisming il Lid 160 it ] o 1] 1388 ]
TOTEL 0.68 0.03%
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5.I. Capital & Financial Services Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(ALl amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 12: Other financial assets

Particul As at As at

SERCRENS 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Security deposits
- Rental deposits 2.7 5.31
- Other security deposits 0.35 0.5
Others
- Proceeds from %ale of Liquid mutual fund - -
- Others 2.39 6.02
Total 8.45 11.68

Mote 13: Current tax assets (net)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income Tax Refund and tax deducted at source (net of provisions) 2.03 0.68
Tatal .03 0.68

5.0, Capftal & Financial Services Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

(Al amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupess, unless otherwise staled)

Hote 14: Property, plant and equipment

Particul office Electrical Computer Furnitare and Flart and Total
articulars Equipment Inskalisticn Equipment Firtures Equspment
Cost:
AL 1 April 2023 4.69 1.15 9.40 1465 10.19 40.0%
Additions 1.53 a1 FAF 5.60 - .86
Dispasals = - - - - =
At 31 March 2024 . 1.76 11.52 10,14 10,19 45,95
Accumulated Depreciation:
At 1 April 2023 17 0,94 755 10,44 9.81 073
Dispasals - - - - . -
Depreclation charge for the wear 1.37 0.z3 1.79 .04 0.m 5,44
At 31 March 2024 3.54 1.1% 9.14 1148 S.EZ 36 AT
Carrying Amount
At 1 April 2021 .53 019 2.05 4.12 0.38 .36
At 31 March 2024 .69 .57 .38 7.78 0,37 13,78
i
", " Y ’_
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5.1, Capital & Financial Services Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 15; Other intangible assets

Particulars Computer Software
Cost:

At 1 April 2023 9.95
Additions 1.35
[isposals -
At March 2024 11.30

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 April 2023 4.11
Misposals -
Amaortisation charge for the year 1.58
At March 2024 5.69
Carrying Amount

At 1 April 2023 5.85
At March 2024 5.61

Mote 16: Other non-financial assets

Particulars As at AE St
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balances with government authorities 10.89 8.05
Other Receivables 0.24 0.24
Total 11.13 8.19
_“‘l“'l! ’_
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5.1, Capial & Financial Services Limied
Hates to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March 2024
&l amourits are i lakhs of Indian Rupees. unless atherwise stated)

Mate 17; Trade payables

A A ak

Particulars ¥1 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

[} total autstandierg dues af micro enterpriges and small enberarises - (WMSME)

|7} total outstanding dues of creditars other than mecro entsmrises and small enterprises .75 T34

. . i.E3 58,97
la) total outstand'ng dues of creditors ather thar micra enterpriges and smsll enlerprises
by Employee related payable 143 17
I) Other Pavables
Total 9,75 7.24
Trade Payable fpeing Schedule

Particulars Dutstanding for the following periods from dus date of payment
Less than 1 11 ymar -3 yewr More than 3 Tetal

yaar ymar

{1} total outstanding dues of mioro enterprises and
small =nterprises -{MERE|

(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 9,75 - = - 9.75
Do dues MSME - - - - 5
It=iDisputed dues-Others - - - -

Mot 18; Dbt securities

A5 ak A ak

FHTEmD 31 March 2024| 31 March 2023

At omortised cost:

Linfisted Ry e Mon-Convertible Debentures (Secured | 430,36 108, 10
Tatal 430,36 108.10
Detseribure Series liabilities in ledia 430,36 108, 10
Tetal 430, 36 108.10

The company has issaied Secuned Unlistes Redeamatde Mon-Convertile Debentiees { the”Debentares™) during the year alming 1o
inCragss e Tusd mllow in trenches, and in demalerialized Torm U the propossd Parsanis) B=langing 1o Prosnaler Calegary and or
ba Persondsi b=longing ko Mon-promobes category, by way af Private Placement {“Deberture isae") |

Far mesting the prospective firarcial reeds directing towards fis growth and expansion, your company has raised Rs 10075 crores
trom 31 persons belonging fo promoter and non-prvnoter category through ssuance of Secured unlisted Redesmabile Mon.
Convertible Debentures by way of private placement in dematerialized Tarm In the last quarter, The Comparny has allotied 10750
Secured unlisted Redeemable Mon-Convertible Deberilures at the rate of R 10 each.

Rate af M, af

Tranches Series p—— PR Face value Asnount

Iranche 1 Series | 11.00% K] 11K Ir.on
Tranche 2 Series | 11.60% 1200 10| EN
Tranche 1 Serles Il 11.00% 3600 1000] 36,00
Tranchi 2 saries I 500K 2350 1@' 13,50
Tranche 1 Series 1 10008 1800 1000 18,00
Tranche 2 Series Il 11.50% 4450 1404 b
Tranche 1 Series Ny 11.00% 3400 1000 14,00
Tranche 2 Series IV 10.00% 1100 1000 11.00
Tranche 1 Series V 10,255 1009 1000 10.00
Tranche 2 Series W 11.50% 3500 1400 .00
Tranche 1 Series 12.00% 600 7| L0
Tranche 1 Series V] 11.50% 3300 1I}|]|]| 3000
Tranche 2 aeries V1 12.00% 43200 10K £1.00
Tranche 1 Series Vil 11508 3004 1000 .00
Tranche 1 series Vil 12.00% 3400 1000 34,00
Tatal AL, 7000 1000] 427.0

Debenture Bedemption Reserve
Pursuant ta notification ezusd by Mimstry of Corporate Affairs on 16th Aupust, 3019 in exercise of the powers conferred by sub-
Ailsn such creation of Debenture redemption reserve & not required 2 the company shall create a debenfure redemption reserve
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Hote T9: Borrowings (other than debt securities)

Particul As at As at
MUSERnS 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Al amortised cost:
a. Term Loan from Bank-C58 Bank-Secured 126.16 -
b. Loan from Related Party-Sharewealth Chits Ltd-Unsecured 25,14 25,17
Taotal 151.31 25.17

The Company has raised Inter Corporate Loan of Rs.25 lakhs from MJs Sharewealth Chits Limited, fellow subsidary of the Holding

1.80
As at 31 March 2024 151.31
As at 31 March 2023 2517
Hote 20: Subordinated Liabilities
As at As at

LA 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
At amortised cost:
Subardinated debt from banks - -
Subardinated debt from others 98.06 97 .88
Total 9B.06 97.88
Subordinate liabilities in India 98.06 97 B8
Taotal 98.06 97.88
| Suboedinate debts from othors:

Subordinate bonds have a face value of Rs 1/- each. Details of rate of interest and maturity pattel'n from the date

sheet is as under;

5.0, Capital & Financial Sarvices Limited
Maotes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(Al ammnts are a0 lakbs of Indian Rupees, unless atharwise stated)

Schedule of Subdebts Maturity Pattern

of the balance

45 at 31 March 2034

2023-24 202323

Redeamable at par within 10, 50°% 11, 00% Total 10, 50% 11.00% Tatal
Humber | Amourt| Mumber |Amownt|  &meunt Humbser Amount | Humber | Amourt | Amount

Duse alter S yoars - - - - - -
Duse withiin 4-% yoars - - - - - - - 1M 2.15 116
e wiithin 3-8 years - - 2,15 215 215 1,00 10.00 1.00 6,00 16,00
[ weilkiin 2- years 00| 10.00 &.00 5,00 16,00 17,00 45,85 1E.00 37,00 77,85

Duse within 1-1 years X H 44,85 3100 3300 TT.B4 = . . . .

D withiin 1 ypar - - - - - - - - - -
Gramd Total £5.85 | 55,25 40,15 | 44,15 06,00 18,00 55.8% 19.00 40,15 DE, 00
Effective Intorest rate adjustment §0.13) Effective Inforest rate adpustment 10 18)
Interest aconeesd as on Bist March D04 2,18 Interest acorued as on 315t Manch 2010 L06

98.06 &5 at 31 March 2023

FENTY
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S.I. Capital & Financial Services Limited

11.300

Humbir A

D= after 5 pears

D withiin &5 picis
Ui welitin S prars
T witinin 3-1 yrare

Dus within 1-2 pears

iz witivin 1 yeear

&.m

arand Taval

ik 31 March 2034

I X

Ireerest acorued & on 3150 March BI24

T0,788.50 |

Mote 21: Other financial liabilities

S.1. Capital & Financial Services Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

A.00% 11.05% 11.60% Tatal
"'“"':_'I;'T;" P Wumber  |Amoust| Humber | Amoust] Mumber |Amomnt|  ARownt
i
Dikd after 5 pears 1200000 | 138D 12.00
D within 4-3 pirars T, H080 ?3.ﬂ:l. T5,00
Dup wethin 5-4 prors .00
D within 2-1 pears aan
D within 1-2 peas i,290.00 | .50 2150
Dl weilhiins 1 var a0
Crand Tatal I, 2a0,00 | 42,50 | SI00AE | Y08 100000 | 108 B
ML aConicd as on Hst Marce M2 0.0
Jen ot 51 Warch 113 198, #0

]

ERE

e
;ﬁurr

preld
410,38
—y

Particulars As at S B
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Others 24.56 25.32
24.56 25.32
Mote 22: Provisions
Particul As at As at
SEUSHRER 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Gratuity 5.82 4.30
5.82 4.30
Mote 23: Other non-financial liabilities
Particulars s At iy
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Statutory dues payable 3.51 1.17
1.5 1.17

¥
5]
-

[

I
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5.1, Capital & Financial Services Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March 2024
(&l amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
Hate 24: Equity share capital
The reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period

As at s ak

3 March 2024 31 March 2013
Authorised
60, 00,000 (31 March 2037: &0, 00.000) equity shares of R, 10/- each G0, G0, 00
BN M) &0, DD

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
34, 00,000 (31 March 2022 30,000,000 1 equity shares of Bs. 10/- each 60,00 340.00
Total Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 3601, 0H) 340,00
Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

M. in Lakhi M. im Lakld
Balance as at 1 April 2023 .00 300w
‘Cnanges in equity share capital during the year 2.00 4,00
Ralance as at 31 March 2024 1600 34.00

Terms! rights attachad ta equity shares

The Company has only ane class of cquity shares having a par value of Rs. 100~ per share, Fach halder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share,
The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors [if any) is subject to the approval of the
sharehoders in the ensuing Anmual General Meeting

In the event o liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recetve remairing assets of the Company, after oistribution of
all preferemtial amounts. The distribution will be = proportion o the number of eguity shares held by the shareholders.
Cansequent upon the approval of shareholders of the Company accorded for preferential fssue through postal ballor on March 17, 2002 and in-principle
approval accorded by the BSE Limited on March 23, 2022, alloted of Z,00,000 [Twa Lakh anly) Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten anly) each,
&b & price of Rs.25/- (Rupees Twenty Tive only) each, including a premium of Bs. 15/ - [Rupees Fifteen anlyjeach to MrAnu T Cheriyan(a non oramoter).
Additionelly in October 202, T lakhs eguily shares were isswed 83 & resull of comeersion of 2 lakh converatble warranls of Tace value Rs. 10/~ [Rupees Ten
anily] each, At & price of RE_257- (Rupeet Tweanly five anly) each, including & premivem of RE.150- (Rupees Fillesn onlyeach 1o Share wealth Securities
Limfted (& promoterp.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31-Mar-i4 31-Mar-23
Particulars Ma. % holding in the| Mo, i % holding in the
in Lakhs clans Lakhs class
Sharewealth Securities Lid 18.43 .21 18.24 53.64
Anu T Cheryan 4.00 11,14 .00 5,88

Ai per the records of the Company, including it register of shareholders ¢ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding
benaficial interact, the shove sharsholding represents bath legal snd beneficial ownerihip of sharas.

Details of shareholdering of Promaters of the Campany

Shares held by pramoters at the end of the year

r gyl ] n h r
Promoters MHame MG i Shia el e % of change during the yea

Sharewealth Securities Lid
1543 51.21 1.06

[Total 1243 51.21 1.06
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S5.I. Capital & Financial Services Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(ALl amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 25: Other equity

Statutory reserve pursuant to Section 45-1C of the RBI Act, 1934

At 31 March 2023 28.69
Add: Transfer from surplus balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss -
At 31 March 2024 28.69

Retained earnings
At 1 April 2021 (89.47)
Add: Profit for the year {12.5%)
Less: Appropriations -

Transfer to Statutory Reserve -
At 31 March 2022 (101.43)

At 1 April 2022 (101.43)

Add: Profit for the year (9.73)
Less: Appropriations -
Transfer to Statutory Reserve -
At 31 March 2023 {111.16)
Add: Profit for the year (71.58)
Less: Appropriations

Transfer to Statutory Reserve
At 31 March 2024 {182.74)

Securities Premium
At 1 April 2021 -
Issue of equity shares for cash -
At 31 March 2022 -
At 1 April 2022 -

Issue of equity shares for cash 60.00
At 31 March 2023 &0.00
Issue of equity shares for cash 30.00
At 31 March 2024 90.00

Total other eguity

At 31 March 2022 (72.73)
At 31 March 2023 (22.46)
At 31 March 2024 (64.04)

Mature and purpose of Reserves

Statutory reserve (Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 45-IC of The RBI Act, 1934): Section 45IC of
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 ("RBI Act, 1934") defines that every non banking finance institution which
is a Company shall create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty percent of its
net profit every year as disclosed in the statement of profit and loss before any dividend is declared. The
Company has not created any special reserve (20% of Profit) under Section 45-1C of RBl Act, 1934 for
Current year (FY 2022-23) and Previous year (FY 2021-22) since, the Company has incurred lossess.

£,
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5.1, Capital & Financial Serviced Limited

Hotes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
{8l amounts are in lakhs of Indlan Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 26: Revenue from operations

Mate 26 [i): Interest income

Particulars

For year ended
31 March 2024

For year ended
31 March 2023

On financial assets measured ot amortised cost:

Interest on loans

- Gold leans 44 47 10,89
- Vehicle Loans 13.03 25.47
- Business Loans 7715 36,33
- Personal Loans 11.94 2.98
= Term Loans .76 .66
Interest on deposils with banks - -
Tatal 161.37 81,313
Mote 26 [ii): Dividend Income
For year ended | For year ended
Pt 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Dividend Income . AL
Total - .11
Mobe 26 (iii): Met gain on fair value changes
For year ended | For year ended

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

{A) Met gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or Loss

{i) On trading portfolio
= Investmeants

{fi} On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or Lloss

(B} Others
{i) Loss on fair valuation of eguity shares

Total Met gain fair value changes

Fair walue changes:
- Realised
- Unrealised

0.05

005

Total Met gain fair value changes (B)

0.05

Mate 16 [iv): Sale of services

For year ended

For year ended

Particul
gt 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Incame fram Farsign Exchangs budinesis 1.4 B.94
Total 11.41 8.%4
Mote 27: Other incoma
Far r!ﬁf ended Far ?Eal’ ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Othars 3175 21,29
Total 3.75 21.29
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5.1. Capital & Financial Services Limited

Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 3 1st March 2024

(Al amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 18: Finance costs

Particulars

For year ended 31

For year ended 31

March 2024 March 2023

O financial [Tabilities measured at amortised cost:

Interest on borrowings - -
Interest on ICD 3.00 0.93
Interest en Gold Loan Repledge Account 617 -
Interest on debt securities 30.20 1.26
Interest on subordinated liabilities 10.18 10.1%
QOther interest expense

- Met gain or loss on foreign currency transaction and
Total 49.55 12.48

Mote 19: Fees and commission expense

For year ended 31

For year ended 31

ERrticitars March 2024 March 2023

O finarcial [Tabilities measured at amortised cost:

Commission paid 10.86 .03
Total 10.86 3.03

Note 30 Impairment on financial instruments

Particulars

For year ended 31

Far year ended 31

March 2024 March 2023
On financial instruments measured at amortised cast:
Loans
- Standard assets 11,59 0.57
« Hon-performing assets 1.77 {1.B3)
Total 23,36 (1.27)

Hote 31: Employes benefits expense

For year ended 31

For year ended 31

e March 2024 March 2023
Galaries and wages 7774 35.57
Contribution to provident and ather funds 5.89 1.90
Staff welfare cxpenses 1.00 0.48
Takal 84,64 37,95

Mote 12: Depreciation, amortization and impairment

Particulars

For year ended 31

For year ended 31

March 2024 March 2023
Depreciation of tangible assets 1.53 1.53
Amortisation of intangible assets 1.26 1.26
Total 7.0 2.80
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5.1, Capital & Financial Services Limited

Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(Al amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 33: Other expenses

particulars For year ended 31 For year ended 31
March 2024 March 2023

Rent 18,85 12.39
Rates and taxes 21.85 9.20
Energy costs .43 1.26
BUSINESS PROMOTION EXP 1.14 -
Repairs and maintenance 3.19 1.27
Communication costs 2.02 1.08
Printing and staticnery 1.50 1.68
Advertising and publicity 1.33 1.85
Director's fees, allowances and expenses 0.97 1.36
Auditor's fees and expenses (Refer Note 27 (i)) 1.90 1.45
Legal and professional charges 18.08 a.17
Company Law matters 0.20 0.35
Insurance 0.23 0.14
Travelling and conveyance 5.64 3.99
Baddebt - 14,27
Bank charges 0.33 0.14
Information Technology Support Costs 7.08 31.17
Rebate on Loan 0.25 0.32
Laoss on Auction =

Miscellaneous expense 1N 4,27
Total T2.68 67,46

Note (i) Auditor's fees and expenses

For year ended 31 For year ended 31
Particulars March 2024 March 2023
{a) Auvditor 1.50 1.20
{b) for taxation matters - -
{c) for Company law matters - -
(d) for other services 0.40 0.25
{e] for reimbursement of expenses - -
Total 1.90 1.45

0TH ANNUAL REPORT 2
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5.1. Capital & Financial Services Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(ALl amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless atherwise stated)

Hote 37: Retirement Benefit Plan

Defined Cantribution Plan

The Company makes Provident Fund contribution which i defined contribution plan for gualifing employees. Under the
tcheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The
Company recognized Rs. 4.27 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 1.74 Lakhs) for Provident Fund contribution in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. The contribution payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the
scheme.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets
A gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.

Hote 318: Convertible Warrants
During the year the company has allotted 2,00,000 equity shares against the conversion of 2,00,000 Convertible
wWarrants held by Mroanu T Cheriyan on 05.10.2023.

5.0. Capital & Financial 5ervices Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 39; Related Party Disclosures

Relationship Hame of the party
Holding company Sharewealth Securities Limited
Fellow Subsidiaries Sharewealth Commadities Private Limited

Sharewealth Chits Limited
Sharewealth Wealth Management Limited

Mon- Executive Directors Mr. Thandassery Balachandran Ramakrishnan
Mr. Linnikrishnan Anchery

Mr. anil Menon

Mrs. Jitha Chummar

Mr. fnu Thomas Cherivaniw.e.f 13th June 2022
Mr. KK Paul (w.e.f 07th February 2023)

Mon- Exgcutive Independent Director Mr. Rajesh Marayan Pillai

Mr. Manazhy Vinod

Mr. Abraham George

Mr. Habeeb Rahiman (Ceassed from 16 th June 2013)
Mr. Jacab Thomas (w.e,f 13th June Z023)

ey Managerial Personnel Mr, Sreeram Gopinathan Nair - Managing Director

Mr. Sujith K Ravindranath (W.e.f, 16th Jan 2034)

MroAjeesh Karckkattil Antony - Chief Financial Officer

Mrs, Aneetta Wilson - Company Secretary (Ceassed from 30 th April 2022)
Mr. Akhil T M - Company Secretary (Ceassed from 25th Movember 2023)
Mrs. Anu Jaya - Company Secretary (Ceassed from 10th October 2022

Relatives of Directors and KMPs wr, Anoop Jolly (Husband of Mrs, Jitha Chummar)




-

Shar

N i

F

ewealth

& Financial Services Limited

E ¥ ITAreACions gur WEAT:
Huolding Company Hon- Executive Koy Managerial Relabises of Directers
Directers {Including Persennal wred Ky Maragerial
dapandint Periannel
Directari)
Partiodars
At AL 5T &% at A st B at A at Az at A at
31 March | 30 March | 31 March | 31 Madch | 31 Mareh | 31 Badeh | 31 Mareh | 31 March
Inid fiikd] ka4 i 24 i ke 4 bk
Il lakha) | e Rakibah | (in lakhsd | e Rakh) | (in lashs) | rie Bakt) | gin lskbsh | (i lakk
Tr, i L r
Rent Paid - - - - - - 1.80 1.30
Mr. snoop Jolly - - - - - - 1.8 .80
Remuncration to KNP = . . = izm 1I.46 ] -
M SR AT i Lhisr Mair - - - - 0.sa i §.1] - -
M Ajeesh K & - = = s a.10 5.1 s -
Mir.Suith K Ravindranath 1.18
Mt Anestts Wilson - - B - - 050 - -
Mr.tohandas Thandyeery Akhil - - - - 4.5 156 - -
M1 AnU sy - - - - A5k -
Sitting Fee to Ddrectors: - - na7 1.36 - - - -
M. SreEram Gosinathan Malr 0 (=R L]
M. T B Ramakrishnen = . 0.m iz ] = ] =
M. Enil Neron - - 010 iz - - - -
My, Jthe Chummar - - 0.8 L] - - - -
M, a gash BMaripae Pillai - - wig (RS - - - -
S, Winod Wanamhy = = O.id ol = - = -
M. bty Rabim o - - 0.om =Rk - - - -
Mir.Sbrsh o George = - 0.08 (=8} ] = - =
M. Unevkrishnan Anchery - - 0.0 Ol - - - -
Mk TG hertyee - - (R wa% - - - -
M, Pau B K - - 0,0 (1] - - - -
M, Thoseas Jacobk = - 0.id 0% - - - -
Loan afven - F5.400 - 540 - - 800 .
BHF COMMERL 1AL INDIA PRIVATE LINIT| - = - . 00
Shareweatth Securites Limted a0 - - - - - -
M. T B Ramakrfdinan - - - 540 - - - -
Interest Income from Loan ghven - 1,47 0Lid 0.4 - - 2.00 -
ERF COMMERT AL IHDUS PRIVATE LIKITI = " = . - 100
Sharswealth Sscurites Limied 147 - - - - - -
M. T8 Aamabkrizhnan - - 0.4 a4 - - - -
-Rrpwmnru'aﬂ.c\in ghven - Ta.a0 4.07 0.53 - - 16,15 -
Sharewsallh Seourities Linded 7500 = - - - - -
ERF COMMERT AL IHDAA PRIVATE LIMIT) - - - - 15.15
M. Thandasery Ramasishnan = - a0 L] . - . -
I Availed 5,00 . . . - . -
Sharewsallh Chils Limibed .00 - - - - - -
Interest paid an ICE Svailed 100 0,95 - - - - - -
Sharswealth Chits Limited X 093 - -
Intarest Faid an Sub Debts .00 .00 . = ] - ] -
Sharewsalth Sacyurites Lirmted 053 ek - - - - - -
Sharewsallh Chils Limibed 147 1.47 = - - - = -
Gake of Foreipn Currersy - - 1.7% 0.5z - - - -
Mir. Ramansthan Anchery - - - [ &) ] = ] =
My, Sreeram Gopnsther Mair 1.5 - - - - -
My, Jitha Chimmar - - 0,53 [+ ] - - - -
Amount prid on Purchese of Ligui &5.00 = - s - . -
Sharewaeatth Securities Limited B5.00 = . . - . -
Amount received on Sale of Liguid 117,51 - - - - - -
Sharewealth Securites Limited LARAT] - - - - - -
Hote:
a) Related parties have been ldenifed on Che baals of the declaration receted by the mansgerent and other reconds svalinble
o) Loans given b3 related parts are repayable on damand.
) The remunenation to the: key masagerial personnel does nof Incluhe B prosiskons made for granuity.
dl " Ca=pary holds demat account with, Skareweslih Sacuritres Limited ghelding compansh. Transachars with Searmwaslth Securfme
Lirrebimel clarsdives vala B o § irua il in b bravvmrbices sl sl o b dme i ui i of s banirienn
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S.I. Capital & Financial Services Limited

5.I. Capital & Financial services Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(Al amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupeas, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 40: Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are
expected to be recovered or settled.

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Particulars Within 12| After 12 Within 12 | After 12
Tatal Total
months | months months | months
Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 61.12 - 61.12 45.65 - 45,65
Loans T76.48 133.19 0977 418.12 92.16 510,28
Inwestments - 0,66 0.66 - 0.03 0.03
Other financial assets - B.45 245 - 11.68 11.68
Hon-financial Assets
Current tax assets (net) = 2.03 2.03 = 0.68 0.68
Deferred Lax assels (net) . 6.76 6.7 . 6.76 6.76
Property, plant and equipment - 13.79 13.79 - 9.36 9.36
Other intangible assets - 5.61 5.61 . 5.B5 5.85
Other non-financial assets - 11.13 11.13 - 8.9 8.29
Total assets 837.59 181.73 | 1,019.32 | 463.77 | 134.80 | 598.57
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Payables 5.75 - 9.75 .24 - 7.24
Debt securities 61.67 368.70 430,36 . 108,10 | 108.10
Borrowings (other than debt securi - 23.14 25.14 . 23.17 2517
Subordinated Liabilities - 98.06 98.06 . o7 .B7 97.87
Gald Repldge Account 126.16 - 126.16
Other Financial liabilities 24,56 - 24,56 25.32 - 28,32
Mon-financial Liabilities - -
Provisions 5.82 - 5.82 4.30 . 4,30
Other non-financial liabilities 3.3 - 3.3 1.17 - 1.7
Total Liabilities 231.47| 491.89 723.36 38.03] 231.14| 269.17
Hat 606.12 | (310.16)| 295,96 | 425.74 | (96.34)] 329.41

Mote 41: Contingent liabilities, commitments and leasing arrangements

Mote 41 (i): Contingent Liabilities
The Company is not exposed to any contingent liabilities during the current and previous year.

Hote 41 (iij: Commitments
The Company does not have any irrevocable commitments as at 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022,

Mote 41 (iii): Lease Disclosures {entity as a lessee)
The Company has not recogmised ROU asset and lease liability for all lease contracts since, all such
leases are either low value leases or short term leases (lease term of bwelve months or less).

0TH ANNUAL REPORT
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T.I. Capital & Financial services Limited
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(&Il amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Hote 42: Fair Value Measurement

42,1 Valuation principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal
{or most advantageows) market at the measurement date under current market conditions , regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial
instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation technigues.

42.1 YValuation governance

The Company's process to determine fair values is part of its periedic financial close process. The Audit Committee exercises the
overall supervision over the methodology and models to determine the fair value as part of its overall monitoring of financial close
process and controls. The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with business units . Once submitted, fair value estimates
are also reviewed and challenged by the Risk and Finance functions,

42,3 Assets and liabilities by fair value hierarchy

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Level 1| Level 2| Level 3| Total | Level1 | Level 2 | Level 3| Total

Particulars

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Financial instrument held for trading

Equity Shares 0.03 - 0.63 0.66 0.03 - - .03
Mutual Funds - - - - - - - -
Total financial instrument held for trading 0,03 - 0.63 0.66 0.03 - - 0.03

42,4 Valuation technigues

Equity instruments

The majority of equity instruments are actively Lraded on public slock exchanges with readily available aclive prices on a regular
basis. Such instruments are classified as Level 1. Units held in funds are measured based on their published net asset value (NAV],
taking inta account redemption andfor other restrictions. Such instruments are generally Level Z. Equity instruments in non-lisbed
entities included investment in private equity funds are initially recognised at transaction price and re-measured (to the extent
information is available) and valued on a case-by-case and classified as Level 3.

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determing fair values for the abowe financial instruments which are nat
recorded and measured at fair value in the Group's financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes
only.

Short-term financial assets and liabilities

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts, which
are net of impairment, are a reasonable approximation of their fair valee, Such instruments include:; cash and balamces, balances
other than cash and cash equivalents, trade payables and other financial lakilities without a specific maturity. Such ameunts have
been classified as Level 2 on the basis that no adjustments have been made to the balances in the balance sheet,

Loans and advances to customers
The fair values of loans and receivables are estimated by discounted cash flow moedels that incorporate assumptions for credit risks,
faretgn exchange risk, probability of default and loss given default estimates,
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Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
WALl amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 43! Risk Management

Risk is an integral part of the Company's business and sound risk management is critical te the success. As a financial intermediary
the Company is exposed to risks that are particular to its lending and the environment within which it operates and primarily
ncludes credit, liquidity and market risks. The Company has a risk management policy which covers risk associated with the financial
gssets and liabilities, The Board of Directors of the company are responsible for the overall risk management approach, approving
risk management strategies and principles, The company have a risk management policy which covers all the nisk associated with its
pesets and liabilities,

Thee Company has implemented comprehensive policies and procedures to assess, monitor and manage risk throughout the Company,
The risk management process is contineously reviewed, improved and adapted in the changing risk scenarie and the agility of the risk
management process is monitored and reviewed for its appropriateness in the changing risk landscape. The process of continuous
evaluation of risks includes taking stock of the risk landscape on an event-driven basis.

The Company has an elaborate process for risk management. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systernatically
eddressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

Credit Risk

Credit risk 15 the risk that & customer or counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Company. The Company's main income generating activity is lending to customers and therefore credit risk is a principal risk. Credit
risk mainly arises from loans and advances.

The credit risk management policy of the Company seeks to have following controls and key metrics that allows credit risks to be
dentified, assessed, monitored and reported in a timely and efficient manner in compliance with regulatory requirements,

- Standardize the process of identifying new risks and designing appropriate controls for these risks
- Maintain an appropriate credit administration and loan review system

- Establish metrics for portfolie monitaring

= Minimize losses due to defaulks or untimely payments by borrowers

- Design appropriate credit risk mitigation technigues

n order bo mitigate the impact of credit risk in the future profitability, the company makes reserves basls the expected credit loss
LECLY model for the outstanding loans as balance sheet date.

The below disoussion describes the Company's approach for assessing impairment as stated in the significant accounting policies.

The Company conskders a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit impaired) for ECL calculations in all cases
when the borrower becomes 180 days past due on its contractual payments,

fs a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Company also considers a variety of instances that may
indicate unlikeness to pay. When such events ocour, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the
rustomer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.
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Hotes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(ALl amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless olherwise stated)

Exposure at Default (EAD)

The outstanding balance at the reporting date &5 considered as EAD by the Company, Considering that the PR determined above
factors in amount at default, there is no separate requirement to estimate EAD.

The Compamy don't hawe historical information and hence uses the PD default rates stated by external reporting agencies.
Considering the different products and schemes, the Company has bifurcated its loan portfolio into varouws pools.

Baged on it review of macro-economic developments and economic outloak, the PD percentages are mentioned below:

Poals Stage | | Stage || | Stage I
11 Gold Loan 0.69% 0, 79%, 0.A9%
I Vehicle Loan 3.52% 3.592% 3.5%%
1) Business Loan 5. 204 5.20% 5.20%
4] Persanal Loan 3.16% 3.16% 3.16%
5 Tesrrn Loan 0. 00% 0.00% 000k

Loas Given Default

The Company determines its recovery rates by analysing the recovery trends over different periods of time after a loan has
defaulted. Based on its analysis of historical trends, the Company had aseseed that skignificant recoveries happean in the year in which
default has occurred,

1] Gold Loan 40,00%
1) Vehicle Loan 55.00%
1) Bustness Loan 50,00%
4] Persanal Loan A45.00%
5)Term Loan 40.00%
In all classified Loss Assets’, LGD has been considered as 100%.

LG Rates have been considered based on proxy FIRE rates for all loans,

The Company has applied management overlays to the ECL Model to consider the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the provision,
The adjustment to the probability of default has been assessed considering the likelihood of increased credit risk and conseguential
default duee to the pandemic,

The provision computed wnder ECL is lower when compared with the provision prescribed as per RBl norms taking into account the
rime lag between an account bacoming non-perfarming, 1ts recagnition as such, the realisation of the security and the eroslan over
girne in the value of security charged, make provision against sub-standard assets, doubtful assets and loss assets as provided by REI
norms.Hence provisioning is considered as per RBI guidelines.

The entity shall after taking into account the degree of well defined credit weaknesses and extent of dependence an collateral
security for realisation, classify its lease ‘hire purchase assets, loans and advances and any other forms of credit into the Tollowing
classes namely,standard, substandard doubtful assets and Loss assets.

For Loss assets,the entire asset shall be writben off. If the assets are permitted to remain in the books for any reason, 100% of the
outstandings is provided

The company has decided bo write off the unrecovered Monperforming Assets worth Rs. 14,27 Lakhs and group under other expenses
to give a true and fair view of the accounts.

And for Doubtful aastes, 100% provision to be created to the extent to which the advance is not covered by the realisable value of the
security to which the entity has a valid recourse shall be macde, The realisable value is sstimated on & realistic basis,

Periad far which the asset has and the percentage of provision to be created are as followed:

Sulby standard Asset 10.00%
Cupuabt Ful
-upto 1 year 20.00%
-one to threee year 30.00%
-mre than three year 50.00%
Loss Asset 100, D0
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Asset & Liability management

Asset and Liability Management (ALM) ks defined as the practice of managing risks arlsing due to mismatches in the asset and
liabilities. Company’s funding consist long term source with different maturity patterns and warying interest rates. On the other
hand, the asset book also comprises of loans of different duration and interest rates. Maturity mismatches are therefore common
and has an impact on the liquidity and profitability of the company. It s necessary for Company's to monitor and manage the assets
and liabilities in such 2 manner to minimize mismatches and keep them within reasonable limits,

Thir objective of this policy is to create an institutional mechanism to compute and monitar periodically the maturity pattern of the
varigus labilities and assets of Company to (&) ascertain in percentage terms the nature and extent of mismatch in different
maturity buckets, especially the 1-30/31days bucket, which would indicate the structural liquidity (B) the extent and nature of
cumulative mismatch in different buckets indicative of short term dynamic lguidity and (c) the residual maturity pattern of repricing
of assets and liabilities which would show the likely impact of movement of interest rate in either direction on profitability. This
palicy will guide the ALM system in Company.

The scope of ALM function can be described as follows:
- Liquidity risk management

- Management of market risks
- Others

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers Lo the risk that the Company may not meet its financial obligations. Liguidity risk arises due to the unavailability
of adequate funds at an appropriate cost or tenure. The objective of liguidity risk management, is to maintain sufficient liquidity and
ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company consistently generates sufficient cash flows from operating
and financial activities to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due. Our resource mobilisation team sources funds
from multiple sources. The resource mobilisation team s responsible for diversitying fund raising sources, managing interest rate
risks and maintaining a strong relatdonship with banks, financial institutions, mutual funds, insurance companies, other domestic and
foreign Tinancial institutions and rating agencies Lo ensure the louidity risk is well addressed,

The table below provide details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial assets and liabilities as on:-

Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on 31 March 2024:

Upta 1 1t 2 i1to 3 3te b |&months| 1%e3 ERT Over 5

SARERCatian manth maonths [ months months | to 1 year |  years years YEars At
Dbl securities - - 12.56 39.10 = | 132.27715 | 234.41943 ] 43036
Borrowings (other than debt

wecurities) B ) ) ) B ) 25 14 } 25.14
Subordinated Liabilities - - - - - 7511 .94 - 98,06
Gold Repledge Account 74,98 10,74 11,95 67,50 - = - - 176.16
Loans 121.23 52,71 77.ER 341.31 183,33 121.5% 11,71 - 305,77
Investments - - - B - - - - .
Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities a3 on 31 March 2023;

Particulars Upto 1 1toZ 2to3 3toés |(&months| 1ol 3tas Ovar 5 Total*

month manths manths manths to 1 year YRAars yEars yaurs
Debt securities - - - - - 12.56 73.19 12,35 108.10
Borrowings (other than debt

securities) i i i 75.17 517
Subordinated Liabilities - - - - - TH. TS 19.12 = 87 87
Gold Repledge Account - - - - 2 - = . .

Lgans 49,71 11,63 30,35 345.01 [T 91,44 0.72 N 510,28

Invesiments -

*amount represents net balance after the adjustments on account of Indian Accounting Standards
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Market Risk

pharket Risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market factor. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the interest rates, credit, lguidity,
pnd other market changes. The Company is exposed to two types of market risk as follows:

nterest Rate Risk
nterest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

Wie are not subject to interest rate risk, because we lend to clients at fixed interest rates and for periods that may differ from ourn
funding sources and our borrowings i.e. subordinated debts are at fixed interest rate for different periods.

Price Risk

The Company's expasure to price risk is not material.

Operational and business risk

Dperational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fravd or external events. When controls fail to operate
pffectively, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial Loss. The
Company cannot expect to eliminake all operational risks, but it endeavours to manage these risks through a controd framework and
by monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation and
reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, such as the use of internal audit.
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Mote 44; Appendix based on REl notification dated March 13, 2020 on Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards

L Difference
Asset Grass Catrvin Provisions #lln:::cn between Ind
Asset Classification as per REI classification ¥ing required as | Met Carrying AS 109
Amount as per {Provisions) as L.
Norms as per Ind AS per IRACP Amount provwisions
109 Ind AS Giatie required under and IRACP
Ind A5 109
Moarms
[ (2) 13} (4 (Sh=(3)-(4) (&) (7h = (4)-(6)
Performing Assets
Stage 1 74585 19.79 Ti6.06 in 16.63
Standard
andar Stage 7 55.95 3,87 52.13 0.35 3,47
Subtotal 851,80 2361 B6E.19 1.46 2015
Hon-Performing Assets (MPA)
Substandard Gtage 3 4728 2.0 4527 4.7% 45.27
Doubtful upto 1 year Gtage 3 0.563 0.03 060 0.12 [0.04)
1 to 3 years Stage 3 - - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 . - - . -
Subtotal for doubtful 0.43 0.03 .60 0,12 (0.0%)
Loss Stage 3 -
subtotal for Loss -
Other items such as guarantees, loan|3tage 1 -
commitments, etc, which are in the
scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered Stage 2 R . . .
ungder current Income Recognition,
Asset Classification and Provisioning
{IRACP} morms Stage 3 -
Subtotal =
Stage 1 795,85 19.79 776,06 in 16.68
Total Stage 2 95.95 3.82 92.12 0.35 3.47
Stage 3 47,91 2.04 45.87 4,85 45.18
Total 939.71 25.65 914.06 B.31 65.33
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Mote 45; Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Mon-Banking Financial Company (As required in terms of Paragraph 19 of Non-
Banking Financial Company - Hon-Systemically Important Mon-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016
Farticulars
Amount
i li i
Liabilities side Outstanding Amount overdue
1 Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial company inclusive
of interest accrued thereon but not paid
Debentures: Secured & Unsecured (other than falling within the
a : ) s 430,36 il
meaning of public deposit®)
b Deferred Credits Mil il
[= Term Loans 136.16 Hil
d Inter-corporate loans and borrowing 25.14 Mil
& Commercial Paper Hil il
f Public Deposits” Mil il
|g Other Loans (specify nature) Hil Hil
“Please see Mote 1 below
5 Break-up of {15if) above [Qutstanding Public Deposits inclusive of interesty
accrued thereon but not paid)
a In the form of Unsecured Debentures Hil Hil
B In the farm of partly secured debentures i.e, debentures whers wil Wil
there & a shortfall in the value of security
c Other Public Deposits il il
“Please see Nobe 1 below
Assets side Amount outstanding
3 Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables {other than those
included in {4} below):
[ Secured 49782
b Unsecured 437 60
4 Break up of Leased Assels and stock on hire and other assels counting
towards asset financing activitles
: Lease assets including lease rentals under sumdry debtors:
i . . ) Mil
Financial Lease and Operating
1 Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
Assets on hire B Repossessed Assets Mil
i Other loans counting towards asset financing activities
Loans where assets have been possessed and Loans other than (a) Nil
above
5 Break-up of Investments
Current Investments
i Quoted
Shares
a}  Equity 0.03
by  Preference Mil
Debentures and Bonds Hil
Units of mutual funds Mil
Government Securities Hil
Others (please specily] Mil
2 Unguoted
Shares
a}  Equity 063
by Preference Mil




Debentures and Bonds il
Units of mutual funds Mil
Gavermment Securities Hil
Others please specify] il
Lang Term Inwestments
1 Cuated
Shares
a) Equity Hil
b} Preference Hil
Debentures and Bonds il
Unfts of mutisal funds il
Gowernment Securities il
Cthers (please specifyl Mil
F] Uniguoted
Shares
al  Equity il
b)  Preference Mil
Debentures and Bonds il
Lnits of mutual funds Hil
Gowermment Securities Mil
Others |please specifyl Ml

Borrower group-wise classification of assets financial as in (3) and (4) above:

. Please see Mote 2 below
Categary Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecurad Total
1 Related Parties Hil Hil Hil
Subsidiaries Hil Hil Hil
Companies i the same group Hil Hil Hil
Other related parties Hil Hil Hil
K Dher Lhan related parties 497 &7 437 a0 G547
Less: Impairment loss| 75,45
allowance
Amount et of provisions 0577
Investor group-wise classification of all investments [(current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and
unguoted)
Please see note 3 below
Market  Value g ok value (Net of
Category Break up or  fair Brovisians) '
walue or AV
1 Related Parties™ il Hil
Subsidiaries Hil il
Companies n the same group Hil Hil
(Other related parties Hil Hil
Other than related parties
F) 3] Shares il Hil
b}  Mutual Fund .00 0.00
Tadal 0.00 0.00
“*As per Accounting Standards of ICAl (Mlease see Note 1)
& Other Infarmation
Particulars Amount
I [Gross Mon Parforming Asset
Relabed Parties Hil
Other than related parties 479
I Met Mon Performing Assets
Related Parties il
Other than related partias 4587
il Assels acguired in satisfaction of debt Mil
Hates:
i As defined in point wxxv of paragraph 3 of Chapter - Il of these Directions
2 Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in these Directions
All Accounting Standards and Guidance Motes issued by ICAI are applicable including for valuation of Investments and
3 other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, market value in respect of guoted investments

and break ups Tair value! MAY in respect of ungquated investments shall be disclosed lrrespective of whether they ang

classified as long term or current in {3) above.
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{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
Mote 46&:; Segment Reporting:
The Principal business of the company is financing long and medium term loans and dealing in foreign currency.
Though the company has earned income from other sources in the form of dividend on investments, interest and
profit on redemption of mutual funds, the percentage of other business income does not exceed 10% of the
grass turnover of the principal business, and as such no segment reporting has been made.
Mote 47: Earnings in Foreign Exchange 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Export of Goods calculated on FOB Basis Hil Mil
Mote 48: Expenditure in foreign currency 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Expenditure incurred by the Company in foreign currency Hil Mil
Mote 49: Events after reporting date
There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.
Mote S0:Previous yvear figures
Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to conform current year's classification.
Mote 51:Compliance related to disclosure of certain ratios
ajfCapital to risk-welghted assets ratlo (CRAR}note i) 34.9%
biTier | CRAR 30.02
c)Tier || CRAR 4.97
djLiquidity Coverage Ratio(note ii} 2.12
Hotes:
i)Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio, TIER | and TIER Il has been computed on a standalone basis as per relevant
REI guidelines.
i) Liguidity Coverage Ratio{Highly Liquid Asset Amount{HJLA}/ Total Met Cashflow)
Far Ayyar & Cherian For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
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